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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management 
provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in 
the form of the MD&A.  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be 
read in conjunction with it.  The MD&A of the District can be found immediately following the report of 
the independent auditors. 
 
 
FEDERAL SINGLE AUDIT AND STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT 
 
The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Federal 
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations.  The District is also required to 
undergo an annual Minnesota State legal compliance audit under Minnesota Statute § 6.65.  Independent 
auditor reports and a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are included in a separately issued 
document.   
 
 
REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 
 
The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (the District).  Component 
units are legally separate entities for which the District (primary government) is financially accountable.  
There are no organizations considered to be component units of the District. 
 
The District provides a full range of public education services appropriate to grade levels ranging from 
pre-kindergarten through Grade 12.  These include regular and enriched academic education, special 
education for exceptional children, and vocational education.  Food service and transportation are 
provided as supporting programs.  The District’s community education program includes early childhood 
and extended day programs, along with a myriad of classes for lifelong learning experiences for children 
and adults. 
 
The District was incorporated in 1953 and serves portions of nine suburban communities on the 
northwestern edge of the Minneapolis/St. Paul metropolitan area.  The District enrolled 20,764 students in 
2010–2011 from a population of 135,140 citizens residing in a 66 square mile area.  In terms of the 
number of students, the District is Minnesota’s fifth largest school district.  The District encompasses all 
or most of the cities of Osseo, Maple Grove, and Brooklyn Park, and smaller portions of six other cities. 
 
During 2010–2011, the District operated 30 buildings:  3 high schools, 4 junior high schools, 
17 elementary schools, 1 area learning center, 2 early childhood sites, an adult education center, an ice 
arena complex, and a central administration/warehouse building.  The instructional program is organized 
using several grade configurations E–3, 4–6, 7–9, and 10–12. 
 
 
LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
With the exception of the voter-approved excess operating referendum and bond referendum, the District 
is dependent on the state of Minnesota for its revenue authority.  Recent experience demonstrates that 
legislated revenue increases have not been sufficient to meet instructional program needs and increased 
costs due to inflation. 
 
The Legislature approved an increase in the education formula of $50 per pupil increase for fiscal years 
2012 and 2013.  The education formula is $5,174 per pupil unit in 2011–2012 and $5,224 per pupil unit 
in 2012–2013, or an increase of 1 percent in each of the next two fiscal years.   
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MISSION, CORE VALUES, AND STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 
The District’s mission, core values, and strategic objectives provide direction for the investment of human 
and financial resources across the system.  
 
 
MISSION 

Our mission is to inspire and prepare all students with the confidence, 
courage, and competence to achieve their dreams; contribute to 
community; and engage in a lifetime of learning. 

 
 
CORE VALUES 
 

1. We believe that lifelong learning is essential for the individual and community to thrive. 
 

2. We believe that everyone has equal intrinsic values. 
 

3. We believe that trust is essential to sustaining successful relationships and to achieving results. 
 

4. We believe that better decisions emerge when diverse perspectives are intentionally included in a 
collaborative process. 

 
5. We believe that everyone benefits when cultural differences are acknowledged and understood, 

and individuals are treated respectfully and equitably. 
 

6. We believe that everyone can learn more. 
 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 
By 2012, all students will – 
 

1. Articulate, plan for, and progress toward their evolving dreams. 
 

2. Choose to contribute to community in a mutually meaningful way. 
 

3. Demonstrate initiative and persistence to continually learn that which is important to them. 
 
 
2010–2011 STRATEGIES:  PRIORITIES AND PROGRESS  
 
Strategy:  We will do whatever it takes to guarantee that all employees support, contribute to, and sustain 
the achievement of our mission and strategic objectives. 
 
Work that has become part of regular operations in our system 

 To sustain the mission and core values, our district has clear and comprehensive internal 
communications. 

 Our employees understand and support our district’s mission, core values, and strategic 
objectives. 

 Our employee management practices and procedures are aligned with and support our mission 
and core values.  
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Current work 
 Our employees serve as ambassadors for the mission by being prepared to tell others about the 

positive aspects of education in the District.  (New priority for 2011–2012.)  
 
Future work 

 A collaborative culture permeates our district to sustain our mission. 
 To sustain our mission and core values, employees resolve personally or with assistance their 

workplace conflicts in a productive way. 
 

Strategy:  We will identify and overcome all obstacles in order to ensure that each student has the 
competence to achieve the strategic objectives. 
 
Work that has become part of regular operations in our system 

 Our system has identified the means to integrate the attributes of an efficacious learner (skilled 
communicator, problem solver, responsible, self-directed, resourceful) into our interactions with 
all students. 

 Our system understands the attributes of efficacious learners and is beginning to integrate them 
into classroom activities throughout the school. 

 The attributes of efficacious learners are integrated into the District’s curriculum and practices. 
 Our staff is using instructional strategies and other practices that ensure students will be able to 

meet the strategic objectives. 
 Our system is continually reviewing site and system policies, procedures, practices, and proposals 

to ensure our mission is achieved. 
 Our system continually assesses facilities, resources, and allocation of time and people to ensure 

our mission is achieved.  (New for 2011–2012:  under this ongoing result, our school district will 
address long-range financial planning.) 
 

Current work 
 Pre-K programming is accessible for all children who need it to ensure they develop the 

cognitive, social, and emotional skills essential to be successful learners. 
 All-day kindergarten is accessible for children who need it to ensure they develop the cognitive, 

social, and emotional skills essential to be successful learners. 
 Our system leaders have identified current practice within individual sites and are creating a 

tiered positive behavior intervention framework to ensure a safe, respectful, and responsive 
environment which is aligned to the system behavior expectations.  (New priority for           
2011–2012.) 

 Our system is implementing standards-based grading practices that will focus on results attained 
after instruction and incorporates multiple opportunities and multiple ways for students to 
demonstrate their learning.  (New priority for 2011–2012.)  

 
Future work 

 Children from birth through kindergarten entry are socially, cognitively, and emotionally ready 
for school. 

 Parents/guardians understand the attributes of efficacious learners. 
 The broader community understands the attributes of efficacious learners. 
 Attributes of efficacious learners are integrated into the District’s non-classroom and 

co-curricular activities. 
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Strategy:  We will leverage the assets of our system and community to optimize the results of our mission 
and strategic objectives. 
 
Work that has become part of regular operations in our system 

 Our organizational structure, as it relates to accountability, optimizes the results of our mission 
and strategic objectives. 

 Our organizational structure, as it relates to processes, optimizes the results of our mission and 
strategic objectives. 

 Using multiple modalities, we communicate with stakeholders and the greater community on 
matters of common interest and to deepen our mutual understanding of our mission and core 
values. 

 Community partnerships are developed and sustained to support our district mission and strategic 
objectives. 
 

Current work 
 Students are willing and knowledgeable advocates for our mission and core values.  

 
Future work 

 A plan to achieve racial and socio-economic balance is being implemented. 
 Staff intentionally creates personal connections with students and families. 
 We have developed model(s) that will connect student learning with the community. 

 
Strategy:  We will develop leadership that will include diverse perspectives of the organization and 
community to ensure a sustained commitment to our mission and strategic objectives. 
 
Work that has become part of regular operations in our system 

 Our district utilizes a systematic plan for recruitment, selection, orientation, and retention of a 
diverse employee base to develop leaders with diverse backgrounds and perspectives to achieve 
our mission and strategic objectives. 
 

Current work 
 District and site leadership assure that diverse backgrounds and perspectives of staff, families, 

and community are included in the decision-making process to achieve our mission and strategic 
objectives. 

 System leaders model intercultural competencies in the system’s Culturally Responsive Standards 
of Practice. 

 Employees understand our system’s Culturally Responsive Standards of Practice.  (New priority 
for 2011–2012.) 
 

Future work 
 Employees and community members with leadership potential from diverse backgrounds and 

perspectives are further developed to become leaders to support our mission and strategic 
objectives. 

 Parents and community members who hold leadership positions in our schools or in the District 
understand our system’s Culturally Responsive Standards of Practice. 

 All students have the opportunity to develop their leadership skills through district and 
community leadership programs to fulfill our mission and strategic objectives. 

 All employees demonstrate our system’s Culturally Responsive Standards of Practice. 
  

The 2011–2012 strategic plan is available on the District’s website:  www.district279.org. 
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DECISION-MAKING 
 
The strategic plan was adopted by the School Board on July 17, 2007.  The plan specifically references 
decision-making as one of the results.  The results state that district and site leadership assure that diverse 
backgrounds and perspectives of staff, family, and community are included in the decision-making 
process to achieve our mission and strategic objectives.  Leadership has received training and is expected 
to implement a collaborative decision-making framework that appropriately includes diverse perspectives 
in the process. 
 
 
TECHNOLOGY PLAN 
 
For 2008–2011, the District has adopted a technology plan which seeks to increase student achievement 
through effective, integrated, technology-based teaching and learning practices; facilitate technology 
proficiency standards for administration, teachers, and support staff; facilitate annual job-specific 
technology staff development; ensure that all students and staff have increased and flexible access to 
technology; and identify the information technology needs of district stakeholders and develop a plan to 
address those needs.  In 2010–2011, the District invested $6,228,699 in technology. 
 
 
BUDGET AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION 
 
The District implemented a budget planning model aligned with the mission, core values, and strategic 
objectives for developing the annual budget.  The budget is based on a variety of key factors.  The 
proposed budget must: 
 

 Document assumptions for revenues and expenditures clearly and separately. 
 Align and maximize resources to sustain progress on the strategic plan over time. 
 Continue to deliver high quality instruction to students. 
 Minimize increase in class sizes to the extent possible. 
 Provide for the elements of effective schools, including a secure and healthy and responsive 

learning environment. 
 Maintain a 5 percent fund balance as required by School Board policy 730. 
 Comply with Minnesota Statute §123B.83 requiring school districts to “limit its expenditures so 

that its net unreserved General Fund balance does not constitute statutory operating debt under 
§ 123B.81.” 

 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT AND TESTING 2010–2011 
 
The District uses student assessment data in many ways.  The District uses the Northwest Evaluation 
Associate Achievement Measures of Academic Progress to measure students’ movement towards meeting 
the state tests required for graduation.  The class of 2011 had to meet three state test requirements to 
graduate.  These tests are named the Minnesota GRAD tests.  The GRAD tests help us to measure our end 
product, our graduates.   
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MINNESOTA GRAD TESTS 
 
The following graph shows the percentage of students who met the GRAD test graduation requirement in 
each of the three tested areas. 
 
A great majority of the District’s students pass the GRAD tests on their first or second try.  The small 
percentages of students who have not met their GRAD test requirements by the end of twelfth grade are 
primarily students in the Special Education or the English Language Learners’ program. 
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FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed 
to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate 
accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and with Minnesota Uniform 
Financial Accounting and Reporting Standards.  The internal control framework is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that:  (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the 
valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management. 
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In addition, the District maintains extensive budgetary controls.  The objective of these controls is to 
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the 
School Board.  Each June, the School Board adopts an annual budget for the following fiscal year for the 
General Fund (including separate budgets for the Operating and Capital Expenditure Accounts), Food 
Service Special Revenue Fund, Community Service Special Revenue Fund, General Obligation Bonds 
Debt Service Account, and Other Post-Employment Benefits Bonds Debt Service Accounts.  An annual 
budget is not adopted for the Capital Projects – Building Construction Fund because project-length 
financial plans are adopted in accordance with bond issue authorization.  An annual budget is also not 
adopted for the Refunding Bonds Debt Service Account as this fund consists solely of trust accounts with 
sufficient resources to retire the refunded bond issues.  The level of budgetary control is at the fund level.  
However, in the General Fund, the Operating and Capital Expenditure Accounts are treated as separate 
funds for budgeting purposes. 
 
As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the 
District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 
 
 
FINANCIAL PROSPECTS FOR FUTURE YEARS 
 
The economic condition of the state of Minnesota remains uncertain in the short term.  As mentioned 
earlier, with the exception of the voter-approved excess operating referendum, the District is dependent 
on the state of Minnesota for its revenue authority.  Recent experience demonstrates that legislated 
revenue increases have not been sufficient to meet instructional program needs and increased costs due to 
inflation.  The Legislature did approve an increase in the general education formula for 2011–2012 and 
2012–2013 of 1 percent for each fiscal year.   
 
 
CASH MANAGEMENT 
 
All temporary cash surpluses during the year are invested in various securities as permitted by state 
statute.  The District has a formal written investment/cash management policy.  The School Board 
approves investment institutions used by the District to purchase investments annually.  In accordance 
with state law, all investment institutions must annually acknowledge in writing that they have received 
and will abide by the District’s investment policy.  The first priority of the District’s policy is to ensure 
the safety of investments and the full collateralization of deposits in accordance with state law.  The 
second priority is the maximization of interest earnings. 
 
The District’s cash management program is particularly successful through the use of MNTrust 
Investment Shares Portfolio in combination with Minnesota School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus 
(MSDLAF+).  MSDLAF+ is an investment pool that utilizes U.S. Bank for banking services.  Under this 
program, the District has a zero balance U.S. Bank account where checks are paid only when they are 
presented to the bank.  All unused balances at the end of each day are swept into the MSDLAF+ interest 
bearing account. 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District utilizes an insurance agency to assist in the review and evaluation of its third party 
commercial property, liability, and workers’ compensation insurance coverage.  The statistical section 
includes an Insurance Coverage Schedule that outlines the types and amounts of coverage. 
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CERTIFICATE OF EXCELLENCE 
 
This report will be submitted to the Association of School Business Officials International for 
consideration for the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting.  The District received this award as 
a result of its initial submission in fiscal 1989–1990 and all subsequent submissions on an annual basis 
through 2009–2010.  The District expects to continue to earn the recognition that accompanies the 
standards of accuracy and thoroughness of the Certificate of Excellence program. 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
The time, effort, and attention that go into the timely preparation of a CAFR require the commitment and 
cooperation of many people.  Special appreciation is hereby extended to the entire Business Services 
Department staff for their dedication and to the School Board for their encouragement and leadership. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                           
Kim Riesgraf, Ed.D. 
Assistant Superintendent, Administration 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          
Kelly A. Benusa, CPA, RSBO, SFO 
Director, Business Services 



 

 -x- 

 
 



Leadership, Teaching 
& Learning (LTL)

Human & Administrative 
Resources Team (HART)

Community 
Engagement
(CEn)

Instructional & 
Information 
Technology 
Team (I2T2)

ISD 279 - Osseo Area Schools Integrated Organization Chart 
2010-2011

Executive Director:  Community 
Engagement 

Director  
 Community Relations

Coordinator:  
Marketing & Enrichment 

Coordinator:  
Facilities & Volunteers 

Coordinator:  
Programs & Operations 

Coordinator: Early 
Childhood  Education 

Coordinator:  
 Adult Basic Ed

Coordinator:  
21st Centry Community 

Schools

Coordinator:  
 Center for Enrollment 

Services

Coordinator:  
 Publications

Chief Technology Officer

Coordinator:  
 Information Systems

Coordinator:  
 Enterprise Technology

Coordinator:   
Instructional Media 

Coordinator:  
 Technical Support 

Services

Technology Integration 
Collaborative Teachers 

Director:  
 Business Serv

Director:  
 Operations/ Facilites

Director
 Human Resources

Director: 
Food & Nutrition

Coordinator:  
Performance Mgmt

Coordinator: 
 Employee Serv

Coordinator:  Purchasing
& Warehouse 

Coordinator:  
 Transportation (2)

Coordinator:  
 Custodial

Coordinator:  Building
and Grounds

Coordinator:  Health &
Safety -Wkrs Comp

Coordinator: 
Accounting/Payroll (2)

Coordinator:  Total 
Compensation

and HRIS 

Asst. Superintendent:  
 Human Resources

Asst. Superintendent: 
 Administration

Supervisor:  Food 
 & Nutrition

Director:  
 Human Resources 
(Labor Relations)

Superintendent
 of Schools

School
 Board

School District
General Counsel

Elementary & Secondary
Principals 

Asst. Superintendent:  Leadership, 
 Teaching & Learning

Director:  
Curriculum Instruction & 
Educational Standards

Director:  
Student Services

Director:  
Research, Assessment & 

Accountability

Asst.  
 Principals

Coordinator:  Gifted 
Education 

Coordinator:  Music
 & Fund Development

Coordinator:  Career & 
 Tech Ed

Curriculum Spec.,  
ATPPS Spec.,

American Indian Spec.

Coordinator:  Equity 
 and Integration

Coordinator:  
 Special Education (7)

Coordinator:  English 
Language Learners

Coordinator:  
 Health Services

Coordinator:  Research, 
Assessment & 
 Accountability

Coordinator:  Curriculum 
& 

 Instruction

Coordinator:  
 PreK-12 Operations (2)

Business Manager

Accountant:
Student Services

 POSA

Coordinator:  
Student Support 

Services
Activities 

 Coordinators-xi-



 -xii- 

Board Position

Dean Henke Chairperson
Kimberly Green Vice Chairperson
Laura Cottington Clerk
James Burgett Treasurer
Tammie Epley Director
Teresa Lunt Director

Cabinet
Dr. Kate Maguire Superintendent
Dr. Keith Jacobus Assistant Superintendent, Division of

Leadership, Teaching, and Learning
Dr. Kim Riesgraf Assistant Superintendent, Administration
Richard Melvin Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources
Tim Wilson Chief Technology Officer
Brian Siverson-Hall Executive Director, Community Education
Barbara Olson Director, School/Community Relations
Margaret Westin, Esq. School District General Counsel

Business Services Office
Kelly Benusa, CPA, RSBO, SFO Director, Business Services
Cindy Brown, RSBO, APM Coordinator, Accounting/Payroll
Michael Hueller, CPA Coordinator, Accounting/Payroll

as of June 30, 2011

SCHOOL BOARD

ADMINISTRATION

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

School Board and Administration



-xiii-



RUSH

EL
M

CREE
K

EL
M

CR
EEK

CR
EEK

CR
EE

K

EL
M

CR
EE

K

SHINGLE CREEK

CR
EE

K

RUSH CREEK

SHIN

GL
E

CR
EE

K

GOOSE LAKE

MUD LAKE

POND
POND

RICE LAKE

TEAL LAKE

POND

POND

RICE LAKE

WEAVER LAKE

GOOSE LAKE

POND
POND

FISH LAKE

WEST ARBOR LAKE

NORTH ARBOR LAKE

GOLDEN POND
POND

ARBOR LAKE

POND

COOK LAKE

POND

CEDAR ISLAND LAKE

PALMER LAKE

EAGLE LAKE

EDWARD LAKE

POND

LAKE CAMELOT

BASS LAKE

LAKE
LAKE

POND

POMERLEAU LAKE

LAKE
LAKE

POND
POND

POND

PIKE LAKE

MISSISSIPPI RIVER

117TH

TRO
Y

TERRITORIAL

COUNTY ROAD 81

113THTERRITORIAL
FRENCH

LAKE

TERRITORIAL

BR
O

CK
TO

N

HO
L L

Y

INTERSTATE
94

COUNTY
ROAD

81

PINEVIEW

GOOSE
LA

KE

109TH 109TH 109TH 109TH 109TH

ZE
AL

AN
D

109TH109TH109TH 109TH 109TH109TH 109TH 109TH 109TH
108TH108TH 108TH

1

08TH 108TH

108TH

ZO
PFI

DUNKIRK

ZO
PF

I

107TH
107TH 107TH107TH

106TH

GARLAND

BOUNDARY
CREEK

W
IN

NE
T K

A

107TH107TH

106TH

TERRITORIAL

106TH

106THZA
CH

AR
Y

Q
UE

BE
C

106TH106TH

HO
LL

Y

DU
N K

IR
K

105TH 105TH
105TH

W
EL

LIN

GTO
N

105THDASSEL 105TH

HO
LL

Y

OXBOW CREEK

SCOTT

104TH
104TH 105TH VERA C

RU

Z

KYL
E

104TH 104TH

DARRELL 104TH 104T H
104 TH

TOLED
O

FE
RN

B R
O

O
K

TERRITORIAL

104TH 104TH

104TH

1 0
4T

H

CHOW
EN

VALLEY
FORGE 104TH

G
RI

M
ES

NO
BL

E

103RD

FR
AN

CE

103RDQU
AK

ER

103RD INDIA
N

A

103RD

FA
LL

GO

LD

103RD

NO
BL

E

103RD 103RD

YORKTOWN
M A

JO
R

103RD

Q
UA

IL

Q
U A

I L

BR
O

CK
TO

N

STIEG

CH
OW

EN

102ND

COUNTY ROAD 81

103RD

Q
U

A
IL NO

BL
E

103RD
103RD

102ND

YATES

R
EV

ER
E

102N

DCO
UN

T Y
RO

AD
11

6

HILLSIDE
102ND

Y A
TE

S

DO
UG

LAS

101ST 101ST 101ST

PI
LG

R
IM

TR
O

Y

101ST 101ST

O
RL

EA
NS

101ST 101ST101ST101ST
HO

LL
Y

101ST 101ST NOBLE102ND

RA
NC

H V
IE

W

101ST 101ST 101ST 102N D CH E ST

NUT

101ST

ZA
CH

AR
Y

101ST 101ST 101ST 101ST

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

101ST101ST

W
IN

NE
TK

A

101ST
101ST101ST

FA
LL

G
O

LD

101STTR
O

Y

101ST

NO
BL

E

101ST 101ST 101ST101ST101ST 101ST 101ST

G
EO

RG
IA

100TH

100T H

100TH
100TH100TH

PIN OAK

IVES 100TH
HUNTERS

SA
R

ATO

GA100TH

100TH PILGRIM

NA
TH

A N

ELM

100TH
99T H 99TH99TH 9 9TH 99TH

GROVE
99TH99TH

FERNBR
O

O
K

LAKESIDE

99TH

ZA
CH

AR
Y

C
O

L O
RAD

O

GROVE

ZANE

99TH OXBOW LAKE
99TH

FALLGOLDN
A

TH

AN 99THR
VE

ER
E

99TH
99TH99TH

BUTTERNUT

98TH
98

TH
99TH

KI
W

I

98TH

TOLE
DO

RE
G

EN
T

99THLI
ND

EN

IVE S

H
AM

PSHIR
E

TRENTO
N 99TH 99THMARIGOLD

98TH99TH 99TH

HE
ML

OCK

99TH99TH 99TH98TH
OAK GROVE

98TH
MARIGOLD

NO
BL

E

TA
RG

ETOAK GROVE

98TH

ZAC
HARY

98TH

ZANE

DE
ER

W
O

O
D

98TH

IVES
98TH 98TH

98TH97TH
97TH 99

TH

HI
G

HW
AY

16
9

R E
G

EN
T

97TH

97TH PI
N

OA
K

TARG
ET

97TH

TARGET

OAK GROVE

TR
O

Y

97TH97TH

TER
RACEVIEW

OAK GROVE
LADYSLIPPER

MAPLE
GROVE

98TH OAK GROVE97TH97THCOUNTY ROAD 30

BRO
CKTO

N

KIRKWOOD

IVES

97TH

ZIN
NIA

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

97TH

OAK
GROVE

LINDEN EV
ER

G
RE

EN

XENIUM

ZANE
97TH97TH97TH

97TH OAK GROVE

98TH
96TH

CO
LO

RADO

COUNTY ROAD 30

W
IN

NE
T

AK

OAK GROVE
97TH96TH

INTERSTATE
94

97TH

NOBLE

OAK GROVE OAK GROVE96TH

ALM
OND

97TH97TH96TH

HIGHWAY 610

96TH

RE
VE

R E

96TH 96TH DAYLILY
96TH

ZAC
HAR Y

96TH 96TH 96TH 96TH
DAYLILY96TH ZA

NE

ZIRCON 96TH

HIGHWAY 610

SCO
TT

XENI UM

96TH HO
LL

YH
OCK

96TH

HEM
LO

CK

PO
LARIS

96TH

AN
N

AP

OLIS

CARNATION
95TH96TH 95TH

96TH
95TH95TH 96TH

96TH

95TH

96

TH

95THAL
VA

RA
DO R

GE
EN

T

95TH

95TH

LAW
NDAL E

95 TH

95TH

95TH
95TH

95TH

96TH
95TH

NIAGARA

95TH
95THCOUNTY ROAD 30

95TH
95TH

PO
LARIS

95TH

UPLAND

RANC
H

V
IEW

95TH95TH

NA
TH

A N

O
RL

EA
NS

95TH

DOGWOOD

RE
G

EN
T

HEM
LO

C
K NO

BL
E

95TH 95TH94TH 94TH

BLUEBELL

95TH

EVERG
R

E
EN

EF RN
BRO

O
K 9 5TH

FALLG
OLD

94TH
ZA

94TH

CH
ER

RY

PATRICK 94TH
94TH

KIRKWOOD

M
INNESO

TA

94TH

95TH

94TH

LAKELAND94TH
94TH 94TH NO

BL
E

XEN IUM

9 4THDA
LL

AS

94TH 94TH

LAW
NDALE

DU
NKI

RK

94TH

G
ARLA ND

BR
O

C K
T O

N

LAN
C

ASTER94TH94TH

GLADSTONE

94TH

93RD HI
GH

W
AY

61
0

93RD
93RD 93RD AUS TRI

AN
PI

NE

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

93RD93RD 93RD

94TH95
TH

JU
NEA

U

93RD94TH
93RD

TEW
SB

UR
Y

MYSTIQUEC

H ERRY

93RD

XENIUM

93RD

RAN
C

HVIEW

EL
M

CR
EE

K

93RD 93RD93RD

ZA
C

HA
RY

93RD93RD 93RD 93RD93RD

LA
R

CH93RD 93RD 93RD 93RD 93RD

W
IN

NE
TK

A

93RD

IN
LAND 93RD 93RD

W
ES

T
BR

O
AD

W
A Y

93RD93RD 7TH 93RD92ND 92ND 92ND 92ND92ND

HA
M

PS
HI

RE

Z A
NE

RE
G

E N
T

92ND ZIN N
IA

93RD
92ND

GL
AD

ST
O

NE

HIGHWAY 610

COUNTY ROAD 81
XY LO

N

92ND92 ND 92ND

XEN
IUM

92ND 6TH92ND 6TH 6TH92ND

QUEENSLAND

1S
T

PE
O

N
Y

92ND 92ND

G
AR

LA
ND

92ND 92ND92ND
92ND

DUNBAR KNOLL

DU
NK

IR
K

92ND

6TH 92ND

W
YO

M
I N

G

91ST 92ND92ND

92ND 92ND

TE
W

SB
URY

91ST 92ND 92ND

QUEENS

WOODHA
LL 92ND

92ND92ND

BR
AN

D Y
W

IN
E

93RD
92ND

5TH 5TH

W
EL

L INGTON

O
RCH

ID

1 S
T

91ST

91ST

93RDNANTW
ICK91ST 91ST

91ST

T6H

RO
S EW

O
O

D

91ST O
AK

VI
EW

91ST91ST91ST M
AR

YL
AN

D

91ST YA
TE

S
BAY

4TH 4TH

2N
D

4TH
LO

UISIANA

OLIVE

BR
O

C
K T

O
N

91ST 91ST
91ST

3R
D

CO
TT

O
NW

O
OD 5T H

91ST

4T
H

4TH

CH
ES

SH
IR

E G
O

L DE NR O
D91ST

RICE
L AKE YU

CC
A

91ST91ST

ZACHARY

91ST

JE
W

EL

91ST DU
NB

AR

91ST91ST 91
ST

UPLAND

90TH90TH
90TH

91ST

DU
NK

IR
K

90TH

91ST
91ST

CO
LO

RADO

LA RCH

Z A
N E

NEDDERSEN

ZA
NZ

IB
AR

90TH90TH
90TH 91ST

91ST

91ST91ST

SHA
NNON

SCHUTTE

2N
D

3RD 3RD 3RD

6TH

3RD3RD 5T
H

NE
VA

D
A

90TH REGENT

90TH 91ST
90TH

PRESTWICK

KE
NT

U
CK

Y

89TH SETZLER
90TH

LO
US

IA
NA

89TH

RE

G A
N

9 0T
H 90TH

89TH

89TH

2ND 2ND

COUNTY ROAD 81

5T
H

6T
H

7T
H

90TH89TH
89TH 89TH

1 1/2

SYCAM
O

R E

MOORLAND
CH

AS89TH

HAMPSHIRE

89TH

NEDDE RSEN 89TH89TH

ZANZIBAR G
O

LD
EN

RO
D

90TH

90TH
1ST

VI
CT

OR
IA

5T
H

6T
H

2N
D

7T
H

BRANDYW
INE

SCHUTTE

1S
T

O
LIV

E

89TH 89THSCHUTTE 89TH

89
TH

89TH89TH

8T
H

89TH

89THNE
VA

DA

89TH

89TH 89TH

W
ES

TO
N

89TH

NEVAD
A

89TH O
AK

VI
EW

FO
RES TVIE W

M
A G

N O
LI A

89TH

R
OSEW

O
O

D

89TH

ZACHAR Y

89TH

VI
NE

W
O

O
D

89TH89TH

NO
BL

E

90TH 89TH89TH88TH

AZ
NE

89TH 89TH

W
YO

MING

89TH

3RD

89TH7T
H

89TH 89TH5T
H EDINBROOK6T
H1ST

2 ND 90TH
88TH

G
LEN

EDIN

88TH NE
D

DE
RS

EN

EDINBROOK

FA
RN

SW
O

RT
H

88TH REGENT88TH88TH88TH 88TH88TH

TRINITY

89TH

PEO
NY

89TH88TH 88TH
88THGAR

LA
ND

88TH DOUGLAS4T
H

KINGS
88TH

QUEENSLAND

87TH

LA
W

ND
AL

E

88TH

TROY

88TH 88TH
WEAVER LAKE

88TH 88TH

EVER
EST

YA

TES
88TH

NO
BL

E

DUNB AR

D
U

N BAR88TH
2ND2ND 2ND2ND

3RD

2ND XY
L O

N

87TH

ZEA
LA ND O

RE
G

O
N

BERWICK89THN
EV

AD
A

88
TH

87TH

PEO
NY

RIC E
L AKE

88TH KINGS

IN
VE

RN
ES

S

ELM
CREEK

CO
M

ST
OCK

87TH
87TH

87TH 87TH 87TH

NORW
O

O
D

JERSEY

8 7 TH NO
BL

E

88TH 88TH

AZ
N

E

KI
N

G
S

88TH CRES
C

EN
T

W
IN

DSO
R

BLA CKO
AK

S

DOUG
LAS

QUEENS

INVERNE SS

K
INGS

KINGS
G

LA
CI

ER
86TH

7T
H

6T
H

3RD

PEO
NY

86TH
86TH

HILLSW
ICK

RICE LAKE 86TH
WEAVER LAKE

TRO
Y

MARYLAND

86TH 86TH86TH

PI
NE

V I
E W

XY
L O

NZA
CH

AR
Y

DU
NK

IR
K

XYLON

N
EVAD

A

ZA
NE

86TH86TH 86TH
85TH

TESS MAN86TH85TH

HI
G

HW
AY

16
9

85TH 7T
H

M
O

NT
IC

EL
L O

OXFOR
D85TH 86TH

NO
BL

EJE
FF

ER
SO

N

ED
IN

BROOK

85TH

UP
LAND

85TH

EDINBROOK

TE

SSMAN

85TH
86T H

CO
UN

TY
RO

AD
11

6

OAK
V

IEW85TH 85TH

TER
R

ACEVIEW

W
EAVER

LAKE

85TH

ROSEW
OO

DWEAVER LAKE

ZA
CH

AR
Y

TARLETON
84TH

VA
LL

EY
FO

RG
E

85THWEAVER LAKE84TH

HIGHW
AY

252

85TH84TH 85TH

W
YO

M
IN

G

85TH

XY
LO

N

W
ES

T
BR

O
AD

W
AY

85TH85TH 85TH

JEFFERSON

85TH84TH 85TH

CR
EEKVIEW

85TH85TH 85TH 85TH

REGENT

85TH

INVERNESS

85TH

NO
BL

E

85TH

ED
IN

BR
O

O
K

85TH 85TH
84TH

85TH84TH

82ND

SHERIDAN84TH 84TH
84TH 84TH

U
PLA

ND

84TH 84T
H84TH

SHADYVIEW

83RD XENE

THOMASS U M
T

ER

INTERSTATE
94

85TH

MAPLE KNOLL

EL
M

CR
EE

K

84TH84T H

G
O

LF
VIEW

TR
O

Y

83RD 84TH83RD DO
UG

LA
S

H
A

M
PSH IR

E

84TH83RD 84TH

YELLO
W

STONE

YATES

ADAIR
84TH

TO
LEDO

84 1/2 84TH83RD 84TH83RD 83RD
84TH84TH

DUNKI RK

83RD 84TH83RD 84TH84TH

WEAVER LAKE

83RDRI
CE

LA
KE

COUNTY
ROAD

81

83RD 83RD

YU
M

A

82ND

XEN

E
82ND

84TH

REG
EN T

84TH 83RD83RD

RE
VE

RE

83RD

83RD

TH
O

M AS
83RD

LA
KE

LAND

83RD

QUEEN

83RD83RD

JEFFER SO
N

83RD82ND83R
D

N
O

R

WOOD

82ND

KE
NT

UC
KY

ZANE

82ND
82ND

BRUN
SW

ICK

NO
BL E

82ND

83RD83RD 83RD
83RD 83RD YO

RK

83RD 82ND

82ND

83RD

82ND
83R D83RD

ZANE82
ND

83RD

SC
O

TTCOLLEGE PARKWEAVER LAKE
81ST

GROVE81
ST

JUNE

82ND 82ND 82ND82ND COLLEGE PARK PEARSON

O
RC

HID

PE
A

RSON

NIAG
ARA I D A H OX E

N
E

82ND
82NDPEARSON

M
AIN

82ND82ND

NE
W

TO
N M

O
R G

A N

82ND

LO
G

AN

KEN
TU

CKY

GROVE
WEAVER LAKE

NO
BLE

82ND81ST81ST 82ND81ST

ELM
CRE

KE 82ND

GROVE

EW ING 82ND

ZA
CH

AR
Y

BR

UNSWICK

SCIMED

RANIER

81ST

81ST WEAVER LAKE
82ND

SCOTT82ND81ST81ST 81ST

LEE

81ST KY
LE

FLO
RIDA

VI
N

EW
O

O
D

FR
AN

C
E

81ST81ST
82ND

82ND 82ND81ST
81ST MAIN

81ST

VINCENT

80TH
81ST

REG
ENT

LAD

JEFF ERS O
N

81ST80TH

VAGABO
ND

81ST

TE
RR

AC
EV

IE
W

81S T

ZENITH80TH 81ST81ST

JU
N

E

80TH 80TH80TH 81ST ZANE80TH M
OU

NT

CURVE

81ST 80TH
80TH LAKEVIEW

80TH

EW
IN

G

80TH

YA
TE

S

80TH

HEMLO
CK

81ST

MOUNT CURVE

GREEN HAVEN

XE
N

IA

81ST81ST

PEARSON

GUNFLIN
T

80TH

MO

RGAN

NARCISSUS

JAM
ES

SI ER RA

80TH

DUNKIRK 80TH80TH
80TH 80TH80TH 80TH

BRANDY W
INE

80TH80TH

TR
O

Y

79TH

LA
W

ND
AL

E

79TH79TH
80TH

LAD
79TH

CH
ESSHIRE

GUNFLINT80TH80TH80TH 80TH 80TH LAD PE
NN

G
EO

RG
I A

ID
AH

O

IRVING

FI
SH

LA
KE

79TH 79TH
ORCHID

EWING

SHAD

YVIEW

INLAND

79TH
80TH79TH ED

G
EW

O
O

D

80TH

YELLOWSTONEH
A

MILTON79TH

M
AI

N

O
REG

O
N

LO
UISIANA

79TH

BEARD

JU NE

79THARBOR LAKES
UNITY

M
O

UNT
CURVE BROOKDALE

HIGHWAY 169

LAKEVIEW

ARBOR LAKES
VINCE NT79TH LARAMIE79TH

CO
LO

RA
DO

DO
UG

L A S

Z
NA E

79TH 79TH79TH LARAMIEID
AH

O

Q
UA

IL

LE
EPE

R
RY

NO
BL

E

KY
LE BROOKDALE

78TH

ITH
ACA IR

V I
NG

79TH 79TH
78TH78T H

HEMLO
CK

ARBOR LAKES

CH
E

SSHIR
E

78TH

78
TH

J U
NE

AU

78TH BROOKDALE
77TH

ELM
CREEK

78TH78TH
78TH

TR
O

Y

XE R XE S

78TH 78THJU
NE

78TH78TH77TH

NO
BLE

R AN CH VI E W

78TH78TH 78TH

78TH78TH

YO
RK

IDAHO

78TH

UNITY

ZAN
E

78TH78TH
78TH

77
TH

KE
NT

UCKY

78TH

EVEREST TETON

BO
O

N E77TH

POLARIS UP
TO

N

78TH 78TH SI
ER

RA

77TH

SU
G

ARLO
AF

77TH

M
JA O

R

CHESSHIRE

NO
BL E78TH

SHING
LE

CR E
EK

YAT E S

G
EO

RG
IA

FI
SH

LA
KE

77TH

77TH

NAR
C

ISSU
S

DUNKIRK

PE
O

NY

77TH 77THFISH LAKE77TH77TH 77TH 77TH

AR
LI

NG
TO

NM
AI

N

ELM CREEK
77TH

HE
M

LO
CK

77TH

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

BROOKLYN

XYLON

ZE
AL

A N
D

JO
LLY

77TH77TH

INTERSTATE
94

BROOKLYN W
ES

T
BR

O
AD

W
AY

JU
N

E

76TH

78TH

TESSM
AN

BROOKLYNELM CREEK Q
UE

EN

PE
NN

76 TH
76TH SI

ER
RA

HUM
B O

LD T

76TH

ZANE7 6TH
DA LEV

IE
W

76TH EVER
ES

T NO
BLEWEDGEW OODBE

R
K S

H
IR

E

76TH

O
RCH ARD

STA

RL ITE SHOP
P

IN

GCE

76TH76TH

JE
WEL

76TH

PERRY

76TH

IRVING

76TH

XERXE S

75TH

FO
UNTAINSFOUNTAINS

S
C

O
TT

76TH76TH

UN
ITY

MARINER

76TH 76TH 75TH76TH

KILMER

ZI
NN

IA

75TH

75TH

ZACHARY

ZANE

LEE

PI
LG

RI

M

ZA
NZIBAR

B
LACKOAKS

NEW
TO

N75TH

75TH
LOUISIANA 75 1/2FOUNTAINS

LEE75THM
AP

LE
W

OO
D

ZIN

NIA

BROOKLYN

O
RCHID

H
ME

L O
CK

ABBOTT BR
OO

KD
AL

E

74TH

BROO
K

D
A LE

76TH

INLAND

76TH
MAIN

M
ARINER

75TH
74TH

JAM
ESID AHO

75TH

N
O

BLE

74TH75TH

75

TH

74TH74TH
74TH 74TH

ZANE

TR
O

Y

75TH 75TH

NO
RTHL AND

75TH

75TH

75TH 75TH

VILLAGE
CREEK

73RD
74TH

74TH74TH

DREW

74 1/2

REG
ENT

P E O
NY

INLAND

74TH 74TH74TH

ZACHARY

DO
UG

L AS

CO
LO

RAD O

7 4 TH

M
ER

R
IM

AC 74TH

M
AJO

R74TH 74 1/274TH

73R
D

DA L LA
S

73R
D VI

NE
W

OOD

74TH 74TH

73

RD

73RD

SHENAND
OAH

Q
UANTICO

NO
BL E

73RD

H
EM

LO
CK

XE
N

A

ZA
NE

73RDBERKSHIRE

JOLLY

74TH
73 R D 74TH73RD

74
TH

TROY

PR
IVA TE

INLAND EV

ERE ST

N
IAG

AR
A

73R
D

BEAR D

YO
RK

73RD

DR
EW

COUNTY ROAD 101
73RD73RD73RD 73RD 73RD73RD73RD 73RD 73RD 73RD

NO
RTHLAND

B O
O

N E

73RD

NO
BLE

REGENT

UNITY

72ND

AS
PE

N

73RD 73RD

COUNTY
ROAD

81

73RD
73RD

73RD72ND 72ND

DO
UG

LA S

C O
L O

R AD O

73RD
KYL E

73RD

ZANE

73RD72
ND

NO
TTINGHAM

73RD
73RD

HIG
H

W
A Y

1 69

72ND72NDQ
UA

NT
IC

O

73RD

HARTKOPF72ND

TERR
A

C
EVIEW

TI
M

BE
R 73RD

72
ND

POND S72ND

W
ING

ARD

72ND KI
M

BE
RL

Y

72ND
73RD72N

D

CE
NT

UR
Y

SHEFFIE
LD

71ST

ARCHER

G
RIM

ES

HA LI FAX

72ND

BO
O

N E

FISH
LAKE

YU
M

A

71ST

FLO
RI DA

72ND

PERRY

71ST JA
NE

LL 72ND

INTERSTATE 94

71ST
KILM

ER

72ND

JEW
EL

BASS LAKE

PHEASANT

COLORADO71ST
71ST 71ST

IDAHO

71ST 71ST71ST

LE
E

BASS
LAKE

PE
O

NY

71ST

EW
IN G

KY
LETEAKW

OOD

BI
RC

HV
IEW

IN
DI

AN
A

71ST71STEAGLE LAKE
70TH

N
O

RT
HL

AN
D

UNITY

73RD

FI
SH

LA
KE

71ST
70TH

NO
R

TH
LAND

FR AN CE

G
RIM

E S71STLA
W

ND
AL

E

70TH
CENTURY

70TH 71ST
71STC

AR
EY70TH

FLO
R

ID
A

70TH

70TH

VIOLET

PHEASANT TR
EN

TO
N

PE
ON

Y

BO
O

NE

ZANE71ST
BASS LAKE

NO
RTHLAND G

EO
R

G
IA UN

ITY

NORTHLAND

E
M

PIRE

M
ARYLA ND

LAKELAND

70TH

BASS
LAKE

71ST69TH 70TH70THNOTTINGHAM69TH
70TH70TH

BROOKLYN

O
RC

H
ID

POLARIS

69TH

PE
RR

Y

Q
U

AI
L

69TH69TH69TH RE
G

EN
T

70TH69TH 70TH

DREW

URBANCRE S
T

FRANC E

TREN
TO

N

BETHIA
69TH

DALLAS

JA N E LL

CO
LO

RA
DO

70

TH

69TH

XIM
INES

69TH69TH 69TH69TH 69TH69THTI
M

BE
R

CR
EST

69TH

D
O

U
G

LAS

69TH

G
RIM

E S

W
I N N ET K A

WINNETKA

M
AG

DA

CAREY

ZA
NE

69TH69TH 69TH69TH 69THPE
RR

Y

REG
EN T

EDG
EW

O
O

D L EE

M
A JO

R

69TH
68TH

68TH 69TH 69TH

FLO
R IDAFISH LAKE

BETHIA

IDAHO

BETHIAMYERS
68TH 68TH 69TH

69TH
69TH

BR
O

CK
TO

N

68TH

PEONY68TH

EM
PI

RE

68TH68TH
68THQ

UA
NT

ICOVI
CKS

BU
RG

68TH68TH

LA
W

ND
AL

E

68TH68TH68TH
68TH

68TH
68TH

BO
O

N
E

SU NN YS LO
P E

DALLAS

68TH 68TH

NO
BLE

68TH 68TH

O
RCHARD

FRANCE

BEA RD

68TH

TO
LEDO

68TH68TH67TH

MODERN

FISH LAKE

PAR
K

MODERN

D
O

UG
LAS 68TH

67TH

MODERN
67TH

E VE
RE

ST

VIC K
SB

UR
G

CO
LO

RADO 68THFOU NTA
IN

67TH67TH 67TH
EAGLE

LA
KE

67TH EV
ER

GR
EE

N

67TH67TH

ZIN
N

IA

67TH67TH67TH67TH 67TH

E

RICKSON
67TH67TH

67TH

TROY

67TH67TH

U
R

BANDALE THURBER
67TH

IDAHO

DREW

M
AG

D
A

EW
IN

G

67TH

TI
M

BE
R

CR
ES

T

66TH66TH BASS LAKE
66 TH 67TH IRIS IRIS67TH IRIS INTERSTATE 94JONQUIL 67TH

67TH

GENTILLY IRISIRIS

EM
P IRE

67TH66TH

XERXES

67TH

66THNOID

66TH

NOID HOWEROBIN D66TH

ZA
CH

AR
Y

66TH
66T H

SYCAM
O

RE

IV
ES

65TH

FLAG

66TH

JU
NE

AU

66TH

C
ARDINAL 66TH 66TH65TH

XYLO
N

BE
R

KS
H

IR
E

65TH

FISH
LAKE

66TH
EAGLE

LA
KE

PER
R

Y

PEO
N

Y

DUTTON65TH

LEE

66TH

ZEALAND

WINCHESTER

ANNAPO
LIS 66TH

ELM ELM ELM ASTER

DREWASTER

M
AG

DAEA
G

LE
LA

KE

65TH

EW
ING

66
TH

BO
O

NE

S Y
C

A M
O

RE

GLACIER

DO
UG

LAS

65TH 65TH

ZANE

65TH 65TH O
RC

HA
RD

65TH

BASS LAKE
65TH65TH 65TH65TH65

TH

CHO
W

EN

65TH 65TH

JUNEAU

66TH

BROOKLYN

65TH
65THNIA

GAR
A

65T

HPAUL64TH

ZI
NN

IA

COUNTY
RO

AD
81

BEARD

65TH

RO
BI

N

MEADOWLARK

ZEALAND

64TH64TH
65TH

D
E

E

RWOOD

TO
L

DE O

E
D

G
EW

O
O

D

INTERSTATE
494

JUNE

M
AJO

R

64TH

64TH

G
EO

RG
IA

IND IANA

ROBIN 64TH

XE
NI

UM

64TH

NO
BLE

64TH
63RD

UNITYMAGDA

63R
D

Q
UAILSCO

TTELEANOR

O
RCHARD

OHENRY

65TH

DO
UG

LAS

63RDO
AK

VI
EW

OHENRY

W
ED

G
EW

O
O

D

63RD

ZINNIA

63RD 63RD

EAG
LE

LAKE 63RD

HIG
HW

AY
169

63RD63RD 63RD
63RD 63RD

EPRRY

KA
TH

RENE

63RD63RD

JUNE

INDI
NA A

FR
ANC

E63RD 63RD63RD 63RD 63RD63RD
RED FOX63RD

JUNE

UNITY

NASH

NO
BLE

M
AJO

R JOYCERED FOX
QUINWOOD

BASS LAKE

NASH

62ND 62ND

VI
CKSBURG

EW
IN

G

NATHAN

62
ND

62ND 62ND 62ND62ND 62ND
62ND

BROO KLY
N

62ND

JUNERED FOX62ND

YUCCA

62N

PERRY

61ST

Q
UAIL

S
C

OTT

M
AG

DA

62ND RED FOX
JANET

NO
LB E

62ND
EAGLE

LA
KE

62NDQ
UI

NW
O

O
D

LEE

KY
EL

61ST

BROOKLYN

61ST62ND

BEARD

61ST61ST 61STYU
C

C
A

61ST
61ST

D
A

LLAS

XER
XES

K Y
L E

60TH
IV ES

PRUDENTIAL PARKING L

ANNAPO
LIS

NORTHWEST
BASS

LAKE

JU
NE

TR
ENTON

60T
H 60TH60T

H

FE
RN

B
RO

OK

COUNTY ROAD 47

GOLDENRO
D

60TH

59
TH 60TH

COUNTY ROAD
47

59TH

NATHAN

59TH
PINEVIEWTEAKWOOD

58
TH

58TH58TH

TR
EN

TO
N

BASS LAKE BASS LAKE BASS LAKE SB
HWY16

9

TO
BA

SS
LA

KE
RD

BASS LAKE
58TH

JU
NE

A U

57TH

PI
NE

VI
EW

AN
NA

POLIS

57T H57TH 57THJUNEAU

57TH57TH

DEER
W

O
O

D

JUNEAU

NATHAN

56THNO
RT

HW
ES

T

56TH 56TH

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
49

4

Q
UINW

O

OD56T H 56TH

NATHAN

TRENTON55TH

BASS
LAKE

RD
TO

SB
HW

Y169

TR
EN

TONG
LACIER 55

TH55TH

55TH 55TH

CHESHIRE

55TH

ZA
CH

AR
Y

P IN EV IE W

54TH
54TH

55TH

VINEW
O

O
D

54TH

JU
NE

AU

54TH 54

TH

M
ENDELSSO

HN

BALSAM

53RD 53RD

ZA
CH

AR
Y

53RD
54TH

NO
RTHW

EST

54TH

NORWOOD 54TH UNION

TE
RR

A
CE

53RD
54TH

53RD
53RD

54TH54THPI
NE

V I
EW

EM
P

IRE 53RD

54T
H

53

RD

54TH 54
TH

52ND

LA
RC

H

52ND52ND
51ST

53RD
51ST53R

D

53RD
51ST

52ND Y
O

RKTOW
N

ZA
CH

AR
Y

51ST
51ST

TR
EN

TO
N

ZACHA RY

XIM
INES50T

H

50TH
50

TH

RO
SE

W
O

O

DCH
ES

H I
RE

NO
RT

HW
EST

SCHMIDT LAKEA
R

RO
W

W
OO

D

49TH

49
TH

117TH

N

D

MAPLE GROVE

CORCORAN

DAYTON

HASSAN

PLYMOUTH

BROOKLYN PARK

OSSEO

22
27

01

00

3

23

4

30

5

78

12

13

1532

17

16

14

6
9

28

31

24

1025
21

26

18

11

20

1 2

19

29

TERRITORIAL

TERRITORIAL

COUNTY ROAD 81

COUNTY
ROAD

81

81ST81ST

Independent School District No. 279

LISt of SchooLS

	00	 Educational	Service		
Center/Warehouse

 01	 Early	Childhood	Service	Center	/	
Osseo	Secondary	Trasition	Center

	 1	 Osseo	Junior	High

		2	 Osseo	Senior	High

		3	 Osseo	Elementary

		4	 Crest	View	Elementary

		5	 Birch	Grove	Elementary

	 6	 Palmer	Lake	Elementary

	 7	 Brooklyn	Junior	High

	 8	 Park	Center	Senior	High	

	 9	 Park	Brook	Elementary

	10	 Cedar	Island	Elementary

	11	 Edgewood	Elementary

	12	 Zanewood	Community	School

	13	 North	View	Junior	High

	14	 Fair	Oaks	Elementary

	15	 Willow	Lane	Early	Childhood	Center

	16	 Garden	City	Elementary

	17	 Orchard	Lane	Elementary	
(Closed	June	2002)

	18	 Rush	Creek	Elementary

	19	 Rice	Lake	Elementary

	20	 Elm	Creek	Elementary

	21	 Basswood	Elementary

	22	 Fernbrook	Elementary

	23	 Edinbrook	Elementary

	24	 Maple	Grove	Junior	High

	25	 Oak	View	Elementary

	26	 Weaver	Lake	Elementary

	27	 Maple	Grove	Senior	High

	28	 Osseo	Area	Learning	Center

	29	 Arbor	View	Early	Childhood	Center

	30	 Woodland	Elementary

	31	 ACHIEVE,	CBVAT,	and	
Enrollment	Center

	32	 Adult	Education	Center

06/07

340

350
335

336

337

338 225

235

250

255

240

245

230

220

150

146

147
145

141

140

80

75

70

6585

90

142144

155
215330

331

323 210
165

160 130
125

355
131

175170

110

190

45

181

166

205

260 200
265

271

270

275

276

283
280

282

284

285

296 290

272

300

295306

311

431

310

309 305

301308307

430

421

316

318

312

341

40
0

411

317
315

440
410

319

322

321

324
320

325

346 345

195

185 40

20 15

10

5

30

55

360

95

33
2

180

183

18
2

10
0

60 61

35

26

25

50

46

115

12
0

342

281

186

Census Areas

-xiv-





-1- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
To the School Board of 
  Independent School District No. 279 
Maple Grove, Minnesota 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Independent School District No. 279 (the District) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  
The prior year partial comparative information presented has been derived from the District’s financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2010, and in our report dated November 3, 2010, we expressed 
unqualified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.   
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used, and the 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the District as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year 
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
As described in Note 1 of the notes to basic financial statements, the District has implemented 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions” during the year ended June 30, 2011. 
 
The financial statements include prior year partial comparative information, which does not include all of 
the information required in a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the 
District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010, from which such information was 
derived. 

(continued) 
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This section of Independent School District No. 279’s (the District) comprehensive annual financial 
report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this 
report and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Key financial highlights for the fiscal year 2011 include the following: 
 

 Net assets increased 6.6 percent over the prior year. 
 

 Overall actual revenues in the Statement of Activities were approximately $286 million and about 
$13.4 million more than expenses. 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial section of the annual report consists of five parts:  independent auditor’s report, 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (this section), the basic financial statements, required 
supplementary information, and the combining and individual fund statements and schedules.  The basic 
financial statements include several kinds of statements which present different views of the District: 
 

 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term 
and long-term information about the District’s overall financial status. 

 
 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the 

District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
 
 The governmental fund statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education 

were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 
 

 The proprietary fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the 
activities the District operates like businesses. 

 
 The fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the 

District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong. 
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The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and 
provide more detailed data.  Figure A shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and 
relate to one another: 

 

Management’s 
Discussion and 

Analysis

Basic Financial 
Statements

Government-Wide 
Financial Statements

Fund Financial 
Statements

Notes to Basic 
Financial Statements

Summary Detail

Organization of Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Figure A
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Figure B summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the 
District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain.  The remainder of this overview 
section of the MD&A highlights the structure and content of each of the statements. 
 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Entire district (except 
fiduciary funds)

The activities of the District 
that are not proprietary or 
fiduciary, such as special 
education and building 
maintenance, food service, and 
community education

Activities of the District that 
operate similar to businesses: 
Internal Service Fund

Instances in which the 
District administers resources 
on behalf of someone else

Required 
financial 
statements

• Statement of Net
  Assets 
• Statement of
  Activities 

• Balance Sheet
• Statement of Revenue, 
  Expenditures, and 
  Changes in Fund Balances

• Statement of Net Assets
• Statement of Revenue,
  Expenses, and Changes 
  in Fund Net Assets
• Statement of Cash
  Flows 

• Statement of Fiduciary
  Net Assets
• Statement of Changes in
  Fiduciary Net Assets

Accounting basis 
and 
measurement 
focus

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial focus

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus

Type of 
asset/liability 
information

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital, 
short-term and          
long-term

Generally assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets or long-term liabilities 
are included

All assets and liabilities, both 
financial and capital, and 
short-term and long-term

All assets and liabilities, both 
short-term and long-term; 
funds do not currently contain 
capital assets, although they 
can

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information

All revenues and 
expenses during the 
year, regardless of 
when cash is received 
or paid

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon after 
the end of the year; 
expenditures when goods or 
services have been received 
and the related liability is due 
and payable

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless of 
when cash is received or paid

All additions and deductions 
during the year, regardless of 
when cash is received or paid

Figure B – Major Features of the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial StatementsGovernment-Wide 
Statements

 
Government-Wide Statements 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private sector companies.  The Statement of Net Assets includes all of 
the District’s assets and liabilities.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in 
the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the District’s net assets and how they have changed.  Net 
assets—the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities—is one way to measure the District’s 
financial health or position. 
 

 Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indicator of whether its 
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

 
 To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors, 

such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other 
facilities. 

 



 

-6- 

In the government-wide financial statements the District’s activities are shown in one category: 
 

 Governmental Activities – Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular 
and special education, transportation, administration, food services, and community education.  
Property taxes and state aids finance most of these activities. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds—focusing on 
its most significant or major funds—not the District as a whole.  Funds are accounting devices the District 
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs: 
 

 Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants. 
 

 The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to 
show that it is properly using certain revenues. 

 
The District has three kinds of funds: 
 

 Governmental Funds – Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, 
which generally focus on:  (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted 
to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.  
Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps to 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future 
to finance the District’s programs.  Because this information does not encompass the additional 
long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information in the 
governmental fund statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 
 

 Proprietary Funds – Internal service fund services for which the District charges a fee are 
generally reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the 
government-wide statements.  The District uses internal service funds to report activities that 
provide supplies and services for the District’s other programs and activities.  The District 
currently has three internal service funds consisting of a self-insured dental plan, retirement 
incentive pay, and a post-employment benefits revocable trust. 

 
 Fiduciary Funds – The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such 

as the Flexible Benefit Plan, Post-Employment Benefits Irrevocable Trust, and Local 
Collaborative Time Study Grant.  The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported 
in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong.  
All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net 
Assets and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets.  We exclude these activities from the 
government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its 
operations. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 
 
Net Assets – The District’s combined net assets were $217,487,460 on June 30, 2011.  This was an 
improvement of 6.6 percent from the prior year. 
 

2011 2010

Assets
Current and other assets 203,607,323$     284,837,096$      
Capital assets 302,196,273      298,551,063       

Total assets 505,803,596$     583,388,159$      

Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 229,644,729$     300,429,948$      
Other liabilities 58,671,407        78,893,078         

Total liabilities 288,316,136$     379,323,026$      

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, 
  net of related debt 163,464,982$     150,448,560$      
Restricted 12,675,484        15,771,277         
Unrestricted 41,346,994        37,845,296         

Total net assets 217,487,460$     204,065,133$      

Table 1
Summary Statement of Net Assets – Governmental Activities

as of June 30, 2011 and 2010

 
 

The District’s improved financial position is the product of many factors.  However, one event from 
last year stands out.  Debt was issued for a combined total of $14,460,000 in general obligation 
refunding bonds and alternative facility bonds, while repaying $12,730,000 of outstanding general 
obligation bonds and alternative facilities bonds and $75,415,000 of refunded general obligation 
bonds. 
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2011 2010

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services 18,304,547$       18,440,195$        
Operating grants and contributions 66,466,389        75,496,551          
Capital grants and contributions 7,589,202          7,663,263            

General revenues
Property taxes 88,766,261        68,057,824          
General grants and aids 103,822,810      110,986,372        
Other 1,428,027          4,885,006            

Total revenues 286,377,236      285,529,211        

Expenses
Administration 9,889,383          9,990,833            
District support services 7,939,090          7,470,338            
Elementary and secondary regular instruction 117,486,457      112,598,739        
Vocational education instruction 2,979,308          3,414,483            
Special education instruction 45,409,052        44,629,039          
Instructional support services 15,395,191        12,435,878          
Pupil support services 20,512,419        21,266,892          
Sites and buildings 13,423,282        15,167,362          
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 338,224             323,660               
Food service 10,230,489        9,834,805            
Community service 13,880,502        13,819,853          
Depreciation not included in other functions 7,320,312          7,173,730            
Interest and fiscal charges on debt 8,151,200          12,218,481          

Total expenses 272,954,909      270,344,093        

Change in net assets 13,422,327$       15,185,118$        

End of year net assets 217,487,460$     204,065,133$      

Table 2
Summary Statement of Activities

for the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

 
 

Changes in Net Assets – The District’s total revenues were $286,377,236 for the year ended June 30, 
2011.  Property taxes and general grants and aids accounted for 67.3 percent of total revenue for the year.  
 
The total cost of all programs and services was $272,954,909.  The District’s expenses are predominantly 
related to educating and caring for students (76.9 percent) (see Figure D).  The administrative activities of 
the District accounted for 3.6 percent of total costs. 
 
Total revenues exceeded expenses, increasing net assets $13,422,327 over last year.   
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Figure C – Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2011 
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Figure D – Expenses for Fiscal Year 2011 
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 The cost of all governmental activities for fiscal year 2011 was $272,954,909. 
 
 Some of the cost, $18,304,547, was paid by the users of the District’s programs. 
 
 The federal and state governments subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions of 

$74,055,591. 
 
 Most of the District’s costs, totaling $192,589,071, were paid for by district taxpayers and the 

taxpayers of our state through general grants and aids.  This portion of governmental activities was 
paid for with $88,766,261 in property taxes and $103,822,810 of state aid based on the state-wide 
education aid formula. 
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Total Total
Percent Percent
Change Change

2011 2010 2010–2011 2011 2010 2010–2011

Administration 9,889,383$     9,990,833$    (1.0%)     7,052,304$    1,227,311$     474.6%  
District support services 7,939,090       7,470,338     6.3%      7,834,225     5,942,337       31.8%    
Elementary and secondary
  regular instruction 117,486,457   112,598,739 4.3%      91,556,525   90,397,570     1.3%      
Vocational education instruction 2,979,308       3,414,483     (12.7%)   2,781,519     3,225,715       (13.8%)   
Special education instruction 45,409,052     44,629,039   1.7%      14,717,977   11,837,586     24.3%    
Instructional support services 15,395,191     12,435,878   23.8%    14,970,803   9,264,040       61.6%    
Pupil support services 20,512,419     21,266,892   (3.5%)     18,938,663   19,447,825     (2.6%)     
Sites and buildings 13,423,282     15,167,362   (11.5%)   5,311,372     6,079,569       (12.6%)   
Fiscal and other fixed cost 
  programs 338,224          323,660        4.5%      338,224        323,660          4.5%      
Food service 10,230,489     9,834,805     4.0%      (186,196)       (444,913)         (58.2%)   
Community service 13,880,502     13,819,853   0.4%      1,807,843     2,051,173       (11.9%)   
Depreciation not included in
  other functions 7,320,312       7,173,730     2.0%      7,320,312     7,173,730       2.0%      
Interest and fiscal charges on debt 8,151,200       12,218,481   (33.3%)   8,151,200     12,218,481     (33.3%)   

Total 272,954,909$ 270,344,093$ 1.0%      180,594,771$ 168,744,084$ 7.0%      

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

Table 3
Net Cost of Governmental Activities

 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS 
 
The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well.  As the 
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $114,640,051, a 
decrease from last year’s ending fund balance of $62,481,753, or 35.3 percent.  This is primarily due to 
debt issued for a combined total of $14,460,000 in general obligation refunding bonds and alternative 
facility bonds, while repaying $12,730,000 of outstanding general obligation bonds and alternative 
facilities bonds and $75,415,000 of refunded general obligation bonds. 
 
Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $286,026,164, while total expenditures were 
$290,535,252.   
 
GENERAL FUND 
 
The General Fund includes the primary operations of the District in providing educational services to 
students from kindergarten through Grade 12, including pupil transportation activities and capital outlay 
projects. 
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The following graph shows the percentage change in the number of students over the last several years: 
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Secondary Elementary

0.8% 0.6% (1.4%) (3.5%) (0.2%) (1.0%)

 
 
Over the last six years, the District has seen a 4.6 percent decrease in the number of students.  Enrollment 
projections predict a slight decrease in enrollment over the next several years. 
 
The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund revenues: 
 

Amount of Percent
Increase Increase

2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Local sources
Property taxes 63,977,647$   44,661,262$  19,316,385$  43.3%               
Interest earnings 65,581            279,782        (214,201)       (76.6%)              
Other 7,443,803       6,991,608     452,195        6.5%                

State sources 150,461,702   156,021,331 (5,559,629)    (3.6%)                
Federal sources 15,979,803     26,935,136   (10,955,333)  (40.7%)              

Total General Fund
  revenue 237,928,536$ 234,889,119$ 3,039,417$    1.3%                

Year Ended June 30, 

 
 
Total General Fund revenue increased by $3,039,417, or 1.3 percent, in fiscal 2011 compared with fiscal 
2010.  Basic general education revenue is determined by a state per student funding formula.  Other 
state-authorized revenue, including excess levy referendum, involves an equalized mix of property tax 
and state aid revenue.  Therefore, the mix of property tax and state aid can change significantly from year 
to year without any net change in revenue.  The District’s property taxes were higher in fiscal 2011 
partially due to the allocation of revenue between state sources and property taxes in fiscal 2011 as 
compared to fiscal 2010 due to the recognition of the tax shift.   
 
State and federal sources decreased by $5.6 million and $11.0 million, respectively.  This decrease was 
due mostly to one-time federal stimulus aid received in fiscal 2010. 
 



 

-12- 

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures: 
 

Amount of Percent
Increase Increase

2011 2010 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Salaries 142,269,327$   138,488,572$  3,780,755$      2.7%                
Employee benefits 44,864,941       43,106,334     1,758,607       4.1%                
Purchased services 29,988,582       30,883,853     (895,271)         (2.9%)               
Supplies, materials,
  and equipment 17,357,557       13,455,613     3,901,944       29.0%              
Other expenditures 1,443,277         3,031,241       (1,587,964)      (52.4%)             

Total expenditures 235,923,684$   228,965,613$  6,958,071$      3.0%                

Year Ended June 30,

 
 
Total General Fund expenditures increased $6,958,071, or 3.0 percent, from the previous year.  Most of 
this increase can be attributed to salaries, employee benefits, supplies, materials, and equipment. 
 
In fiscal 2011, salaries increased 2.7 percent and employee benefits increased 4.1 percent.  The increase in 
salaries and benefits is attributed to employee contract improvements and an additional 19 full-time 
teaching positions added to reduce class and increase all-day kindergarten options.  
 
Supplies, materials, and equipment increased by $3.9 million from the prior year.  This increase was due 
to a capital lease issued during the year in the amount of $2,597,000 for computers and other      
computer-related hardware.  Operating capital projects included $900,000 for various projects, such as 
science lab remodels and district-wide replacement of doors, handles, and locks.  Also, textbook 
purchases for curriculum adoptions increased $471,000 from the previous year.  
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The following graph shows the General Fund unassigned/unreserved fund balance as a percentage of 
expenditures: 
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In fiscal year 2011, General Fund revenue and other financing sources were more than expenditures and 
other financing uses by $4,616,856.  Therefore, total fund balance increased to $55,439,078 at June 30, 
2011.  After deducting nonspendable, assigned, and restricted amounts, the unassigned fund balance 
increased from $34,382,285 at June 30, 2010 to $38,222,696 at June 30, 2011. 
 
The graph above is the single best measure of overall financial health.  The unassigned fund balance of 
$38,222,696 at June 30, 2011 represents 16.2 percent of annual expenditures or slightly more than 
eight weeks of operations.  The District closely monitors its fund balances. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times.  These budget 
amendments fall into two categories: 
 

 Implementing budgets for specially funded projects, which include both federal and state grants; 
reinstating prior year purchase orders being carried over; and budgeting for clearing, resale, and 
gifts. 
 

 Changes in appropriations for significant unbudgeted costs. 
 
While the District’s final budget for the General Fund anticipated that expenditures would exceed 
revenues and other financing sources by $2,968,218, the actual results for the year show an increase of 
$4,616,856. 
 

 Actual revenues were $1,248,318 more than expected.  State sources were over budget by 
$1.6 million due to $1.3 million in special education and special education excess revenue 
formulas adjustments, along with more students served than previously estimated.  Other revenue 
sources were over budget by $1.4 million due to several items, including more COBRA insurance 
fees collected and increased facility rentals from planned amounts.  Federal sources were under 
budgeted entitlement amounts by $2.0 million.  These grants contain carryover provisions and 
will be spent down during the next fiscal year as planned. 

 
 Actual expenditures were about $3.7 million under budget, or a 1.6 percent variance.  This is the 

result of several contributing factors.  Salaries were $2.1 million less than budget, because 
positions were unfilled and actual contract settlements and attrition of staff were less than budget.  
Purchased services were $2.2 million less than budget due to conservation efforts of staff and 
administration and final tuition billings being less than previously anticipated.  Federal and state 
grants actual expenditures were $2.1 million less than budgeted entitlements.  Capital projects 
were over budget by $1.6 million due to two main areas.  The issuance of a capital lease for 
computers in the amount of $2.6 million was partially offset due to other projects being 
intentionally delayed or kept under budget by fiscally managing fund dollars. 
 

 Other financing sources were about $2.6 million over budget, due mainly to the issuance of a 
capital lease totaling $2.6 million. 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 
The Capital Projects – Building Construction Fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded 
expenditures by $4,402,708, resulting in an increased fund balance of $9,846,783 at June 30, 2011.   
 
The Debt Service Fund expenditures exceeded revenues and other financing sources and other financing 
uses by $71,807,925 in fiscal 2011.  The remaining fund balance of $43,716,229 at June 30, 2011 is 
available for meeting future debt service obligations, and for paying off one bond which is callable in 
2012 with the escrow accounts established from 2010A Refunding Bonds. 
 
NONMAJOR FUNDS 
 
Revenues exceeded expenditures in the nonmajor funds by $306,608.  The Food Service Special Revenue 
Fund had a surplus of $329,166, which was caused by actual employee settlement costs being less than 
budgeted amounts, less inventory purchased due to fewer meals served than anticipated, and a kitchen 
remodel project being delayed.  The Community Service Special Revenue Fund decline in fund balance 
of $22,558 was caused by expenditure growth in the Early Childhood Family Education program area.  
From the standpoint of maintaining current operating expenditures within the range of annual revenue, 
these funds continue to operate on a sound financial basis and are monitored throughout the year. 
 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
 
During fiscal 2011, the District operated a Dental Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund.  This fund 
accounts for the District’s self-insured dental insurance program.  Net assets in this fund increased 
$47,605, resulting in net assets of $271,720 at June 30, 2011.  
 
Over the next several years, the District’s annual obligation to pay post-employment benefits will remain 
at its current level because a large block of employees will be reaching retirement age.  Accordingly, the 
District established a Retirement Incentive Pay Internal Service Fund and adopted a plan to fund its early 
retirement incentive (severance) as the benefits are earned in accordance with governmental accounting 
standards.  The Retirement Incentive Pay Internal Service Fund is used to finance the early retirement 
incentive benefits provided by all of the departments and funds of the District on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 
 
The Retirement Incentive Pay Internal Service Fund change in net assets decreased $1,851,983, resulting 
in a net asset deficit of ($1,175,089) at June 30, 2011.  The majority of this decrease is attributed to the 
independent actuarial valuation study dated June 30, 2011, which computed future costs.  
 
The Post-Employment Benefits Revocable Trust Internal Service Fund was established to fund other  
post-employment benefits (OPEB) in accordance with standards described in Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 43 and 45.  This revocable trust fund was established to provide 
a source of funds to fund current and future benefit obligations to employees.  On June 30, 2011, this fund 
has net assets of $12,151,193.  The assets held in this fund are dedicated for the purpose of paying these 
obligations.  
 
The most recent independent actuarial study dated June 30, 2011, computed the present value of these 
benefits.  The long-term liability represents net OPEB pension benefit obligations based on actuarial 
estimates.  The District has been fortunate to pre-fund a portion of this post-employment benefit liability.  
This funding is built into the ongoing annual budget.  By funding the plan now, the District will avoid the 
future reductions of regular programming that would have been necessary to pay for these 
post-employment benefits. 
 
For information on the funding progress of the OPEB obligations of the District refer to the notes to basic 
financial statements. 
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS IRREVOCABLE TRUST FUND 
 
The Post-Employment Benefits Irrevocable Trust Fund was established to fund OPEB in accordance with 
standards described in GASB Statement Nos. 43 and 45.  This irrevocable trust fund was established to 
provide a source of funds to fund current and future benefit obligations to employees.  On June 30, 2011, 
this fund has net assets of $3,199,535.  The assets held in this fund are dedicated for the purpose of 
paying these obligations.  
 
The most recent independent actuarial study dated June 30, 2011, computed the present value of these 
benefits.  The long-term liability represents the present value of these benefits based on medical benefits 
earned.  The District has been fortunate to pre-fund a portion of this post-employment benefits liability.  
This funding is built into the ongoing annual budget.  By funding the plan now, the District will avoid the 
future reductions of regular programming that would have been necessary to pay for these 
post-employment benefits. 
 
For information on the funding progress of the OPEB obligations of the District refer to the notes to basic 
financial statements. 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS, DEBT ADMINISTRATION, AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Capital Assets 
 
By the end of fiscal year 2011, the District had invested almost $429 million in a broad range of capital 
assets, including school buildings, athletic facilities, computer and audio-visual equipment, and 
administrative offices (see Table 4).  (More detailed information about capital assets can be found in 
Note 3 of the notes to basic financial statements.)  Total depreciation expense for the year was 
$9.8 million as compared to a prior year depreciation expense of $9.7 million. 
 

Total
Percent Change

2011 2010 2010–2011

Land 10,691,698$       10,691,698$       –                         
Land improvements 26,321,967        25,070,461        5.0%                    
Buildings 377,938,760      369,466,103      2.3%                    
Furniture and equipment 10,739,471        10,460,750        2.7%                    
Construction in progress 2,726,381          2,037,404          33.8%                  
Less accumulated depreciation (126,222,004)     (119,175,353)     5.9%                    

 
Total 302,196,273$     298,551,063$     1.2%                    

Table 4
Capital Assets – Governmental Activities
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Debt Administration 
 
At June 30, 2011, the District had bonded debt of $196,925,000.  Under current state statutes, the 
District’s general obligation bonded debt issuances are subject to a legal limitation equal to 15 percent of 
the actual value of all taxable property within the District.  The District is within its legal authority for 
bonded debt. 
 
Long-Term Liabilities 
 

Total Percent
2011 2010 Change

General obligation bond principal payable 196,925,000$  270,610,000$  (27.2%)             
Capital leases 2,597,000       –                      100.0%             
Unamortized premiums on debt issued 8,772,303       10,034,581     (12.6%)             
Post-employment severance benefits payable 16,676,144     15,246,090     9.4%                
Net other post-employment benefit obligation 4,674,282       4,539,277       3.0%                

Total 229,644,729$  300,429,948$  (23.6%)             

Table 5
Outstanding Long-Term Liabilities

 
 
More detailed information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 4 of the notes to 
basic financial statements. 

 

Bond Ratings

Limitations on Debt

The District’s general obligation bonds carry a rating of Aa1.

The state limits the amount of general obligation debt the District can issue to 15 percent of the assessed value
of all taxable property within the District’s corporate limits. The District’s outstanding debt is significantly
below this limit, which is currently $1,954,105,770.
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FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE 
 
The Legislature approved an increase in the general education formula for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 of 
1 percent for each fiscal year.  Recent experience demonstrates that legislated revenue increases have not 
been sufficient to meet instructional program needs and increased costs due to inflation.  The District will 
strive to maintain its longstanding commitment to academic excellence and educational opportunity for 
students within a framework of financial fiduciary responsibility. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the 
money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Business Services Department, Independent School District No. 279, Educational Service 
Center, 11200 – 93rd Avenue North, Maple Grove, Minnesota 55369-6605. 
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Capital Projects –  
Building Debt

General Fund Construction Fund Service Fund Nonmajor Funds 2011 2010

Assets       
 
Cash and temporary investments 6,812,261$          10,351,593$        13,726,263$        4,590,880$          35,480,997$        45,818,930$        
Cash and investments held by trustee –                          –                          39,416,255          –                          39,416,255          109,966,422        
Receivables 

Current taxes 24,175,812          –                          10,675,950          972,463               35,824,225          35,671,179          
Delinquent taxes 1,296,402            –                          562,001               44,819                 1,903,222            2,309,577            
Accounts and interest 489,246               6,572                   5,733                   238,488               740,039               2,390,839            
Due from other governmental units 53,393,875          –                          221,827               1,193,048            54,808,750          53,065,089          

Inventory 486,172               –                          –                          463,247               949,419               896,545               
Prepaid items 1,732,957            25,359                 –                          2,031                   1,760,347            1,974,096            

Total assets 88,386,725$       10,383,524$       64,608,029$       7,504,976$         170,883,254$     252,092,677$     
      

Liabilities and Fund Balances   

Liabilities
Salaries payable 658,381$             1,699$                 –$                        282,317$             942,397$             785,085$             
Accounts and contracts payable 4,360,625            535,042               1,700                   377,385               5,274,752            5,850,014            
Due to other governmental units 1,305,524            –                          –                          –                          1,305,524            1,451,994            
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 24,064,433          –                          20,446,632          964,166               45,475,231          65,100,970          
Unearned revenue 1,530,507            –                          –                          208,001               1,738,508            188,034               
Deferred revenue 1,028,177            –                          443,468               35,146                 1,506,791            1,594,776            

Total liabilities 32,947,647          536,741               20,891,800          1,867,015            56,243,203          74,970,873          

Fund balances
Nonspendable 2,219,129            25,359                 –                          465,278               2,709,766            2,870,641            
Restricted 7,567,001            9,821,424            43,716,229          5,237,015            66,341,669          136,452,678        
Assigned 7,994,876            –                          –                          –                          7,994,876            3,579,827            
Unassigned 37,658,072          –                          –                          (64,332)                37,593,740          34,218,658          

Total fund balances 55,439,078          9,846,783            43,716,229          5,637,961            114,640,051        177,121,804        
      

Total liabilities and fund balances 88,386,725$       10,383,524$       64,608,029$       7,504,976$         170,883,254$     252,092,677$     

See notes to basic financial statements

(With Partial Comparative Information as of June 30, 2010)

Total Governmental Funds

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
as of June 30, 2011

Pages 22 and 23







Capital Projects –
Building Debt

General Fund Construction Fund Service Fund Nonmajor Funds 2011 2010

Revenue       
Local sources

Property taxes 63,977,647$        2,369,678$          19,856,830$        2,650,091$          88,854,246$        68,129,655$        
Investment earnings 65,581                 3,203                   873,453               9,643                   951,880               3,081,100            
Other 7,443,803            –                          –                          14,031,339          21,475,142          21,011,030          

State sources 150,461,702        –                          739,423               2,186,520            153,387,645        159,688,952        
Federal sources 15,979,803          –                          –                          5,377,448            21,357,251          31,906,832          

Total revenue 237,928,536        2,372,881            21,469,706          24,255,041          286,026,164        283,817,569        

Expenditures
Current 

Administration 9,887,474            –                          –                          –                          9,887,474            9,988,924            
District support services 5,925,326            –                          –                          –                          5,925,326            5,386,523            
Elementary and secondary regular instruction 115,476,010        –                          –                          –                          115,476,010        110,571,064        
Vocational education instruction 2,983,259            –                          –                          –                          2,983,259            3,414,117            
Special education instruction 45,407,700          –                          –                          –                          45,407,700          44,620,521          
Instructional support services 15,591,201          –                          –                          –                          15,591,201          12,401,998          
Pupil support services 20,510,806          –                          –                          –                          20,510,806          21,265,279          
Sites and buildings  19,803,684          –                          –                          –                          19,803,684          19,336,434          
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 338,224               –                          –                          –                          338,224               323,660               
Food service –                          –                          –                          9,987,972            9,987,972            9,551,844            
Community service –                          –                          –                          13,762,170          13,762,170          13,714,124          

Capital outlay –                          6,613,035            –                          198,291               6,811,326            7,109,133            
Debt service

Principal –                          –                          12,730,000          –                          12,730,000          13,161,297          
Interest and fiscal charges –                          42,138                 11,277,962          –                          11,320,100          12,771,091          

Total expenditures 235,923,684        6,655,173            24,007,962          23,948,433          290,535,252        283,616,009        
      

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 2,004,852            (4,282,292)           (2,538,256)           306,608               (4,509,088)           201,560               

Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding bonds issued –                          –                          5,775,000            –                          5,775,000            52,375,000          
Debt issued –                          8,685,000            –                          –                          8,685,000            –                          
Premium on debt issued –                          –                          370,331               –                          370,331               5,384,227            
Bond retirement from escrow –                          –                          (75,415,000)         –                          (75,415,000)         (17,165,000)         
Capital lease issued 2,597,000            –                          –                          –                          2,597,000            –                          
Proceeds from sale of assets 15,004                 –                          –                          –                          15,004                 5,236,426            

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,612,004            8,685,000            (69,269,669)         –                          (57,972,665)         45,830,653          
      

Net change in fund balances 4,616,856            4,402,708            (71,807,925)         306,608               (62,481,753)         46,032,213          

Fund balances
Beginning of year 50,822,222          5,444,075            115,524,154        5,331,353            177,121,804        131,089,591        

       
End of year 55,439,078$       9,846,783$         43,716,229$       5,637,961$         114,640,051$     177,121,804$     

See notes to basic financial statements

(With Partial Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2010)

Total Governmental Funds

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Pages 26 and 27















































































































Other
General Post-Employment

Obligation Refunding Benefits
Bonds Bonds Bonds 2011 2010

Assets

Cash and temporary investments 13,160,781$        –$                        565,482$             13,726,263$        14,080,824$        
Cash and investments held by trustee –                          39,416,255          –                          39,416,255          109,966,422        
Receivables

Current taxes 10,147,422          –                          528,528               10,675,950          10,659,708          
Delinquent taxes 543,281               –                          18,720                 562,001               677,395               
Accounts and interest –                          5,733                   –                          5,733                   1,131,581            
Due from other governmental units 211,024               –                          10,803                 221,827               182,849               

Total assets 24,062,508$       39,421,988$       1,123,533$          64,608,029$       136,698,779$     

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 1,700$                 –$                        –$                        1,700$                 100$                    
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 19,437,635          –                          1,008,997            20,446,632          20,701,420          
Deferred revenue – delinquent taxes 430,536               –                          12,932                 443,468               473,105               

Total liabilities 19,869,871          –                          1,021,929            20,891,800          21,174,625          

Fund balances
Restricted for bond refunding –                          39,421,988          –                          39,421,988          111,098,003        
Restricted for general debt service 4,192,637            –                          –                          4,192,637            4,363,440            
Restricted for OPEB bonds debt service –                          –                          101,604               101,604               62,711                 

Total fund balances 4,192,637            39,421,988          101,604               43,716,229          115,524,154        

Total liabilities and fund balances 24,062,508$       39,421,988$       1,123,533$          64,608,029$       136,698,779$     

as of June 30, 2011
(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2010)

Totals

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Debt Service Fund
Balance Sheet by Account

Pages 82 and 83



Other
General Post-Employment

Obligation Refunding Benefits
Bonds Bonds Bonds 2011 2010

Revenue
Local sources

Property taxes 18,893,797$        –$                       963,033$            19,856,830$        19,276,168$        
Investment earnings 20,088                853,066              299                     873,453              2,727,591           

State sources 703,412              –                         36,011                739,423              677,217              
Total revenue 19,617,297         853,066              999,343              21,469,706         22,680,976         

Expenditures
Debt service 

Principal 12,730,000         –                         –                         12,730,000         11,545,000         
Interest and fiscal agent fees 7,228,431           3,089,081           960,450              11,277,962         12,730,295         

Total expenditures 19,958,431         3,089,081           960,450              24,007,962         24,275,295         

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
  over expenditures (341,134)             (2,236,015)          38,893                (2,538,256)          (1,594,319)          

Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding bonds issued 5,775,000           –                         –                         5,775,000           52,375,000         
Premium on debt issued 370,331              –                         –                         370,331              5,384,227           
Bond retirement from escrow (5,975,000)          (69,440,000)        –                         (75,415,000)        (17,165,000)        
Proceeds from sale of assets –                         –                         –                         –                         68,519

Total other financing sources (uses) 170,331              (69,440,000)        –                         (69,269,669)        40,662,746         

Net change in fund balances (170,803)             (71,676,015)        38,893                (71,807,925)        39,068,427         

Fund balances
Beginning of year 4,363,440           111,098,003        62,711                115,524,154        76,455,727         

End of year 4,192,637$        39,421,988$       101,604$           43,716,229$       115,524,154$     

Year Ended June 30, 2011
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2010)

Total

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances by Account

Pages 84 and 85



2010
Over (Under)

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Revenue
Local sources

Property taxes 18,888,622$    18,893,797$    5,175$             18,430,837$    
Investment earnings 30,000             20,088             (9,912)              86,847             

State sources 703,412           703,412           –                      648,348           
Total revenue 19,622,034      19,617,297      (4,737)              19,166,032      

Expenditures
Debt service 

Principal retirement 12,730,000      12,730,000      –                      11,545,000      
Interest and fiscal agent fees 7,183,168        7,228,431        45,263             8,260,100        

Total expenditures 19,913,168      19,958,431      45,263             19,805,100      

Excess (deficiency) of 
  revenue over expenditures (291,134)          (341,134)          (50,000)            (639,068)          

Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding bonds issued –                      5,775,000        5,775,000        16,585,000      
Premium on debt issuance –                      370,331           370,331           631,430           
Bond retirement from escrow account –                      (5,975,000)       (5,975,000)       (17,165,000)     
Sale of capital assets –                      –                      –                      68,519             

Total other financing sources (uses) –                      170,331           170,331           119,949           

Net change in fund balances (291,134)$       (170,803)        120,331$         (519,119)         

Fund balances
Beginning of year 4,363,440        4,882,559        

End of year 4,192,637$     4,363,440$     

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2010)

2011

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

General Obligation Bonds Debt Service Account
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2011

-86-









Post-Employment
Benefits

Dental Retirement Revocable
Self-Insurance Incentive Pay Trust Fund 2011 2010

Assets
Cash and investments held by trustee 397,534$            15,501,055$       –$                          15,898,589$       16,269,423$       
Cash and temporary investments –                        –                        16,646,947 16,646,947         16,267,395         
Interest receivable 5                        –                        178,528 178,533             157,871             

Total assets 397,539             15,501,055         16,825,475            32,724,069         32,694,689         

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable 125,819             –                        –                            125,819             121,784             
Post-employment severance benefits payable –                        1,826,958           –                            1,826,958           1,887,638           

Long-term liabilities
Net other post-employment benefit obligation –                        –                        4,674,282 4,674,282           4,539,277           
Post-employment severance benefits payable –                        14,849,186         –                            14,849,186         13,358,452         

Total liabilities 125,819             16,676,144         4,674,282              21,476,245         19,907,151         

Net assets (deficit)
Restricted for employee benefits –                        –                        12,151,193            12,151,193         11,885,989         
Unrestricted 271,720           (1,175,089)       –                           (903,369)          901,549           

Total net assets 271,720$           (1,175,089)$      12,151,193$          11,247,824$      12,787,538$      

as of June 30, 2011
(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2010)

Totals

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Pages 90 and 91



Post-Employment
Benefits

Dental Retirement Revocable
Self-Insurance Incentive Pay Trust Fund 2011 2010

Operating revenue
Contributions from governmental funds 1,373,322$          1,146,383$          –$                           2,519,705$          1,928,005$          

Operating expenses
Dental benefit claims 1,326,416            –                          –                             1,326,416            1,303,344            
Post-employment severance benefits –                          3,022,051            –                             3,022,051            1,042,850            
Other post-employment benefits –                          –                          135,005                  135,005               1,641,792            

Total operating expenses 1,326,416            3,022,051            135,005                  4,483,472            3,987,986            

Operating income (loss) 46,906                 (1,875,668)           (135,005)                 (1,963,767)           (2,059,981)           

Nonoperating revenue
Investment earnings 159                      23,685                 400,209 424,053               541,106               

Change in net assets 47,065                 (1,851,983)           265,204                  (1,539,714)           (1,518,875)           

Net assets (deficit)
Beginning of year 224,655               676,894               11,885,989             12,787,538          14,306,413          

End of year 271,720$            (1,175,089)$        12,151,193$          11,247,824$       12,787,538$       

Year Ended June 30, 2011
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2010)

Totals

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Pages 92 and 93



Post-Employment
Benefits

Dental Retirement Revocable
Self-Insurance Incentive Pay Trust Fund 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Contributions from governmental funds 1,373,322$        1,146,383$        –$                       2,519,705$        1,928,005$        
Payments for dental claims (1,322,381)        –                        –                         (1,322,381)        (1,300,552)        
Post-employment severance benefit payments –                        (1,591,997)        –                         (1,591,997)        (1,078,298)        

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 50,941               (445,614)           –                         (394,673)           (450,845)           

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income received 154                    23,685               –      379,552              403,391             482,077             

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 51,095               (421,929)           379,552              8,718                 31,232               

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 346,439             15,922,984        16,267,395         32,536,818        32,505,586        

End of year 397,534$          15,501,055$     16,646,947$      32,545,536$     32,536,818$     

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
  cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss) 46,906$             (1,875,668)$      (135,005)$           (1,963,767)$      (2,059,981)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
  to cash provided by operating activities

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 4,035                 –                        –                         4,035                 2,792                 
Post-employment severance benefits payable –                        1,430,054          –                         1,430,054          (35,448)             
Net other post-employment benefit obligation –                        –                        135,005              135,005             1,641,792          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 50,941$            (445,614)$        –$                      (394,673)$        (450,845)$        

Cash and temporary investments 397,534$           15,501,055$      –$                       15,898,589$      16,269,423$      
Cash and investments held by trustee –                        –                        16,646,947         16,646,947        16,267,395        

Total cash and cash equivalents 397,534$          15,501,055$     16,646,947$      32,545,536$     32,536,818$     

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2010)

Cash and cash equivalents are reported on the Statement of Net Assets as follows:

Totals
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 96,390,421$    102,325,728$ 99,920,464$   105,535,469$ 124,787,611$ 124,409,664$  131,450,075$ 144,073,305$ 150,448,560$ 163,464,982$ 
Restricted 5,107,929        6,959,356      8,590,494      7,175,670      12,617,075    14,759,910      17,721,351    13,292,206    15,771,277    12,675,484    
Unrestricted 9,603,148        18,806,452    35,199,817    31,645,703    27,262,251    28,172,864      20,057,766    31,514,504    37,845,296    41,346,994    

Total governmental activities net assets 111,101,498$  128,091,536$ 143,710,775$ 144,356,842$ 164,666,937$ 167,342,438$  169,229,192$ 188,880,015$ 204,065,133$ 217,487,460$ 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Net Assets by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Expenses
Governmental activities

Administration 8,728,636$     8,203,153$    9,027,666$    8,860,354$    9,742,766$    9,993,084$    10,063,773$  9,010,266$    9,990,833$    9,889,383$    
District support services 6,623,476       6,438,112     6,403,655     6,913,381     7,839,330     7,758,332      8,083,375     7,466,464     7,470,338     7,939,090     
Elementary and secondary regular instruction 85,494,000     84,409,293   87,604,488   103,110,282 101,323,546 113,139,917   118,598,218 110,299,265 112,598,739 117,486,457 
Vocational education instruction 4,179,552       3,682,448     3,842,878     3,913,382     4,263,387     3,941,086      3,728,269     3,009,509     3,414,483     2,979,308     
Special education instruction 31,070,152     31,900,919   33,920,333   37,556,692   40,645,883   44,143,783     45,785,607   41,770,841   44,629,039   45,409,052   
Instructional support services 15,417,150     11,399,730   10,383,833   11,900,502   13,154,946   14,088,857     14,963,628   13,992,893   12,435,878   15,395,191   
Pupil support services 12,923,603     12,714,181   12,627,859   13,684,700   16,638,284   22,116,462     22,161,931   19,904,914   21,266,892   20,512,419   
Sites and buildings 10,312,006     20,172,789   17,480,238   14,730,947   15,429,568   16,424,757     15,964,989   15,930,494   15,167,362   13,423,282   
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 402,335          605,172        642,007        662,348        648,147        675,592         473,187        406,778        323,660        338,224        
Food service 7,490,217       7,954,650     7,652,495     8,429,539     8,580,455     8,768,750      9,196,217     9,640,003     9,834,805     10,230,489   
Community service 8,863,002       9,429,559     10,640,161   11,102,886   11,212,714   12,921,276     12,936,464   13,444,016   13,819,853   13,880,502   
Depreciation not included in other functions 12,255,881     13,454,516   4,919,865     4,951,841     5,621,407     6,608,269      7,583,134     6,942,870     7,173,730     7,320,312     
Interest and fiscal charges on debt –                    –                   11,172,327   9,620,461     11,488,036   12,238,463     11,673,207   11,603,663   12,218,481   8,151,200     

Total governmental activities expenses 203,760,010   210,364,522 216,317,805 235,437,315 246,588,469 272,818,628   281,211,999 263,421,976 270,344,093 272,954,909 

Program revenues
Governmental activities

Charges for services
Food service 4,901,484       4,766,629     4,857,340     4,863,520     5,023,991     4,967,714      5,129,756     5,088,224     5,171,603     4,924,319     
Community service 4,717,423       4,855,121     6,734,686     6,138,828     6,389,336     7,638,000      8,138,424     8,106,834     8,126,265     8,417,053     
All other 3,965,986       4,996,036     6,315,099     5,495,156     5,369,229     4,784,065      4,141,480     5,267,724     5,142,327     4,963,175     

Operating grants and contributions 39,574,555     43,533,154   42,365,561   46,264,580   60,924,189   54,064,749     61,524,104   57,098,030   75,496,551   66,466,389   
Capital grants and contributions 9,578,597       9,273,119     9,211,002     7,471,965     7,433,946     7,289,819      9,847,821     8,781,111     7,663,263     7,589,202     

Total governmental activities 
  program revenues 62,738,045     67,424,059   69,483,688   70,234,049   85,140,691   78,744,347     88,781,585   84,341,923   101,600,009 92,360,138   

Net (expense) revenue (141,021,965)  (142,940,463) (146,834,117) (165,203,266) (161,447,778) (194,074,281)  (192,430,414) (179,080,053) (168,744,084) (180,594,771)

General revenues and other changes in net assets
Governmental activities

Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 35,592,945     12,444,938   34,682,198   25,751,901   15,771,786   31,857,093     36,266,718   43,768,195   44,627,270   63,920,940   
Property taxes, levied for community service 1,015,502       1,299,743     2,102,577     1,428,028     732,972        1,496,514      1,559,500     1,272,495     2,500,000     2,648,450     
Property taxes, levied for debt service 19,486,288     17,937,777   19,295,491   17,612,082   19,189,590   17,725,156     17,672,387   18,727,775   19,240,286   19,827,193   
Property taxes, levied for capital projects –                    800,000        800,000        1,000,000     2,417,258     2,417,258      3,496,264     2,252,863     1,690,268     2,369,678     

General grants and aids 90,098,042     119,579,381 108,374,114 118,250,007 123,672,171 130,531,939   129,243,681 128,054,844 110,986,372 103,822,810 
Gain on sale of capital assets –                    –                   –                   –                   14,694,266   –                    –                   –                   1,242,367     –                   
Other general revenues 170,383          40,160          53,689          89,671          113,958        114,092         63,633          46,918          20,433          52,094          
Investment earnings 9,344,952       7,828,502     580,639        1,717,644     5,165,872     6,570,363      6,014,985     4,607,786     3,622,206     1,375,933     

Total governmental activities 155,708,112   159,930,501 165,888,708 165,849,333 181,757,873 190,712,415   194,317,168 198,730,876 183,929,202 194,017,098 

Change in net assets 14,686,147$   16,990,038$  19,054,591$  646,067$       20,310,095$  (3,361,866)$    1,886,754$    19,650,823$  15,185,118$  13,422,327$  

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

General Fund
Reserved

Operating Account 344,502$        1,039,762$   310,244$      234,305$      256,619$      327,996$      506,027$      660,346$      533,030$       –$                 
Capital Expenditure Account 3,809,573       3,291,751    2,914,202    3,132,721    11,040,797  12,047,096    12,214,774  7,336,875    10,161,288   –                 

Unreserved – Capital Expenditure Account (1,341,253)      (992,490)     (308,588)     (774,543)     (2,042,771)   (1,689,393)     (395,386)     (55,785)       (162,696)       –                 
Unreserved – Operating Account 9,282,868       18,617,656  34,974,032  37,460,651  34,934,417  25,769,032    20,088,634  31,789,373  40,290,600   –                 
Nonspendable

Operating Account –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   2,065,648    
Capital Expenditure Account –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   153,481       

Restricted
Operating Account –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   237,001       
Capital Expenditure Account –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   7,330,000    

Assigned –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   7,994,876    
Unassigned

Operating Account –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   38,222,696  
Capital Expenditure Account –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   (564,624)     

Total General Fund 12,095,690$   21,956,679$ 37,889,890$ 40,053,134$ 44,189,062$ 36,454,731$  32,414,049$ 39,730,809$ 50,822,222$  55,439,078$ 

All other governmental funds
Reserved 165,625,777$ 84,574,065$ 27,039,457$ 3,372,535$   76,097,156$ 74,967,997$  75,194,504$ 83,953,551$ 119,002,177$ –$                 
Unreserved, reported in

Special revenue funds 1,291,380       1,422,098    1,455,242    1,552,891    1,690,982    1,521,478      2,032,961    2,312,497    2,871,254     –                 
Capital Projects – Building Construction Fund –                    –                 –                 –                 (3,530,679)   59,710          –                 –                 –                   –                 
Debt Service Fund – General Obligation Bonds 5,212,074       5,049,076    5,878,903    4,779,774    4,779,568    5,013,972      4,757,150    5,092,734    4,426,151     –                 

Nonspendable
Special revenue funds –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   465,278       
Capital Projects – Building Construction Fund –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   25,359         

Restricted
Special revenue funds –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   5,237,015    
Capital Projects – Building Construction Fund –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   9,821,424    
Debt Service Fund – General Obligation Bonds –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   43,716,229  

Unassigned, reported in
Special revenue funds –                    –                 –                 –                 –                  –                  –                 –                 –                   (64,332)       

Total all other governmental funds 172,129,231$ 91,045,239$ 34,373,602$ 9,705,200$   79,037,027$ 81,563,157$  81,984,615$ 91,358,782$ 126,299,582$ 59,200,973$ 

Unreserved/unassigned – Operating Account as a 
  percentage of total expenditures 5.6% 11.5% 20.7% 20.2% 17.4% 11.6% 8.8% 14.0% 18.4% 17.3%

Note:  

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 54 in fiscal 2011, which established new fund balance classifications. 

Fiscal Year

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Revenues
Local sources

Taxes 57,791,709$   32,537,978$  56,768,534$  45,858,747$  37,894,566$  53,116,313$   58,726,894$  65,613,628$  68,129,655$  88,854,246$  
Investment earnings 8,310,633       7,533,417     411,209        1,364,224     4,539,494     5,929,166       5,494,552     4,180,823     3,081,100     951,880        
Other 16,396,970     17,498,366   17,960,815   19,388,736   19,609,949   21,080,964     20,310,897   21,500,746   21,011,030   21,475,142   

State sources 129,019,339   161,088,929 149,283,020 157,049,050 176,717,537 176,452,641   186,341,580 178,308,918 159,688,952 153,387,645 
Federal sources 6,027,079       8,456,306     10,667,657   12,135,941   12,599,334   11,857,856     11,426,422   12,634,021   31,906,832   21,357,251   

Total revenues 217,545,730   227,114,996 235,091,235 235,796,698 251,360,880 268,436,940   282,300,345 282,238,136 283,817,569 286,026,164 

Expenditures
Current

Administration 8,723,585       8,177,084     9,007,546     8,832,993     9,677,102     9,927,437       10,052,596   9,008,356     9,988,924     9,887,474     
District support services 3,553,672       3,378,312     3,419,196     3,837,553     4,730,043     4,918,609       5,208,267     6,597,460     5,386,523     5,925,326     
Elementary and secondary regular instruction 83,349,268     82,373,686   85,672,569   95,380,665   99,534,825   109,765,803   113,381,446 118,327,117 110,571,064 115,476,010 
Vocational education instruction 4,176,920       3,681,641     3,842,512     3,909,994     4,256,486     3,969,198       3,718,292     3,009,143     3,414,117     2,983,259     
Special education instruction 30,914,035     31,692,931   33,900,234   37,406,229   40,322,851   44,059,232     45,643,778   45,242,029   44,620,521   45,407,700   
Instructional support services 12,393,648     9,261,138     8,889,269     10,045,533   10,893,040   11,842,154     13,357,181   14,720,337   12,401,998   15,591,201   
Pupil support services 12,888,142     12,685,932   12,484,495   13,664,119   16,611,977   22,087,652     22,148,423   20,377,010   21,265,279   20,510,806   
Sites and buildings 10,138,144     10,269,980   11,138,734   11,675,814   13,536,960   14,362,239     14,107,319   23,592,865   19,336,434   19,803,684   
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 402,335          605,172        642,006        662,348        648,147        675,592         473,187        406,778        323,660        338,224        
Food service 7,357,683       7,646,495     7,578,440     8,201,583     8,388,194     8,830,855       8,981,026     9,475,675     9,551,844     9,987,972     
Community service 8,780,262       9,353,070     10,559,648   11,000,245   11,109,433   12,855,079     12,874,087   13,348,656   13,714,124   13,762,170   

Capital outlay 57,792,683     56,485,694   45,976,177   35,011,757   22,712,217   13,578,636     12,022,631   2,048,070     7,109,133     6,811,326     
Debt service

Principal 12,978,259     9,979,286     11,360,751   11,376,164   12,538,980   11,334,931     11,550,524   12,557,332   13,161,297   12,730,000   
Interest and fiscal charges 12,636,029     14,372,578   11,839,839   10,267,179   10,019,452   13,534,029     12,410,812   11,862,190   12,771,091   11,320,100   

Total expenditures 266,084,665   259,962,999 256,311,416 261,272,176 264,979,707 281,741,446   285,929,569 290,573,018 283,616,009 290,535,252 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (48,538,935)    (32,848,003)  (21,220,181)  (25,475,478)  (13,618,827)  (13,304,506)    (3,629,224)    (8,334,882)    201,560        (4,509,088)    

Other financing sources (uses)
Refunding bonds issued 18,655,000     –                   –                   –                   67,055,000   –                    –                   –                   52,375,000   5,775,000     
Debt issued 56,400,000     –                   –                   –                   –                    5,235,000       –                   24,945,000   –                   8,685,000     
Premium on debt issued 1,061,501       –                   –                   –                   5,077,782     61,305           –                   80,809          5,384,227     370,331        
Proceeds from sale of assets –                    –                   –                   –                   14,953,800   –                    10,000          –                   5,236,426     15,004          
Transfers in –                    –                   –                   –                   –                    –                    234,382        208,660        –                   –                   
Transfers out –                    –                   –                   –                   –                    –                    (234,382)       (208,660)       –                   –                   
Debt retirement from escrow –                    (38,375,000)  (21,912,000)  –                   –                    –                    –                   –                   (17,165,000)  (75,415,000)  
Capital leases issued 3,285,632       –                   424,260        2,970,320     –                    2,800,000       –                   –                   –                   2,597,000     
Refunding capital leases issued –                    –                   3,537,000     –                   –                    –                    –                   –                   –                   –                   

Total other financing sources (uses) 79,402,133     (38,375,000)  (17,950,740)  2,970,320     87,086,582   8,096,305       10,000          25,025,809   45,830,653   (57,972,665)  

Net change in fund balances 30,863,198$   (71,223,003)$ (39,170,921)$ (22,505,158)$ 73,467,755$  (5,208,201)$    (3,619,224)$   16,690,927$  46,032,213$  (62,481,753)$ 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
  expenditures 12.3% 12.0% 11.0% 9.6% 9.3% 9.3% 8.7% 8.5% 9.4% 8.7%

Note:

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Fiscal Year

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Starting in fiscal year 2009, General Fund capital outlay is included within the current programs instead of being reported in capital outlay
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Elementary
and Secondary Vocational Special Fiscal and Percent Increase

Year Ended District Regular Education Education Instructional Pupil Sites and Other Fixed (Decrease)
June 30, Administration Support Services Instruction Instruction Instruction Support Services Support Services Buildings Cost Programs Total From Prior Year

2002 8,723,585$       3,553,672$       83,349,268$     4,176,920$      30,914,035$    12,393,648$      12,888,142$     10,138,144$    402,335$         166,539,749$  5.9%             
5.2%                 2.1%                 50.0%              2.5%               18.6%             7.5%                 7.8%                6.1%               0.2%               100.0%           

2003 8,177,084         3,378,312         82,373,686       3,681,641       31,692,931     9,261,138         12,685,932      10,269,980     605,172          162,125,876   (2.7%)            
5.0%                 2.1%                 50.8%              2.3%               19.6%             5.7%                 7.8%                6.3%               0.4%               100.0%           

2004 9,007,546         3,419,196         85,672,569       3,842,512       33,900,234     8,889,269         12,484,495      11,138,734     642,006          168,996,561   4.2%             
5.3%                 2.0%                 50.7%              2.3%               20.1%             5.2%                 7.4%                6.6%               0.4%               100.0%           

2005 8,832,993         3,837,553         95,380,665       3,909,994       37,406,229     10,045,533       13,664,119      11,675,814     662,348          185,415,248   9.7%             
4.8%                 2.1%                 51.4%              2.1%               20.2%             5.4%                 7.4%                6.3%               0.3%               100.0%           

2006 9,677,102         4,730,043         99,534,825       4,256,486       40,322,851     10,893,040       16,611,977      13,536,960     648,147          200,211,431   8.0%             
4.8%                 2.4%                 49.7%              2.1%               20.1%             5.5%                 8.3%                6.8%               0.3%               100.0%           

2007 9,927,437         4,918,609         109,765,803     3,969,198       44,059,232     11,842,154       22,087,652      14,362,239     675,592          221,607,916   10.7%           
4.5%                 2.2%                 49.5%              1.8%               19.9%             5.3%                 10.0%              6.5%               0.3%               100.0%           

2008 10,052,596       5,208,267         113,381,446     3,718,292       45,643,778     13,357,181       22,148,423      14,107,319     473,187          228,090,489   2.9%             
4.4%                 2.3%                 49.7%              1.6%               20.0%             5.9%                 9.7%                6.2%               0.2%               100.0%           

2009 8,999,895         6,058,214         115,806,205     2,985,960       45,205,282     13,760,634       20,370,175      14,143,153     406,778          227,736,296   (0.2%)            
4.0%                 2.7%                 50.9%              1.3%               19.8%             6.0%                 8.9%                6.2%               0.2%               100.0%           

2010 9,979,526         5,245,557         108,739,133     3,405,199       44,613,682     11,675,311       21,265,279      13,157,337     323,660          218,404,684   (4.1%)            
4.6%                 2.4%                 49.8%              1.6%               20.4%             5.4%                 9.7%                6.0%               0.1%               100.0%           

2011 9,874,328         5,063,114         112,961,341     2,973,611       45,401,988     10,806,374       20,510,261      13,479,877     338,224          221,409,118   1.4%             
4.5%                 2.3%                 51.0%              1.3%               20.5%             4.9%                 9.3%                6.1%               0.1%               100.0%           

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

General Fund – Operating Account Expenditures by Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Revenue
General Fund

Operating Account 163,421,643$   172,155,924$  184,623,419$  187,825,928$  197,707,511$  212,513,908$   222,588,122$  223,755,854$  225,547,633$  229,105,709$  
Capital Expenditure Account 9,108,718         10,082,182     10,095,712     8,241,156       8,707,146       9,307,362         11,318,906     10,653,126     9,341,486       8,822,827       

Special revenue funds
Food Service 7,753,952         8,002,454       8,245,021       8,555,527       8,952,943       9,284,843         9,640,510       9,934,674       10,295,493     10,421,017     
Community Service 9,034,287         9,514,428       10,747,479     10,987,418     11,144,346     13,077,544       13,657,891     13,390,804     13,416,748     13,834,024     

Debt service funds
Debt Service Account – General
  Obligation Bonds 19,768,655       19,450,451     20,583,606     18,920,729     20,477,291     18,941,917       18,753,734     19,478,520     19,166,032     19,617,297     
Debt Service Account – Other 
  Post-Employment Benefits Bonds –                       –                     –                     –                     –                     –                      –                     1,515              876,986          999,343          

Total revenue 209,087,255$   219,205,439$  234,295,237$  234,530,758$  246,989,237$  263,125,574$   275,959,163$  277,214,493$  278,644,378$  282,800,217$  

Expenditures
General Fund

Operating Account 166,539,749$   162,125,876$  168,996,561$  185,415,248$  200,211,431$  221,607,916$   228,090,489$  227,736,296$  218,404,684$  221,409,118$  
Capital Expenditure Account 13,078,367       10,251,241     10,213,619     11,458,912     17,021,098     10,747,685       9,632,839       15,191,424     10,560,929     14,514,566     

Special revenue funds
Food Service 7,453,392         7,909,128       8,071,951       8,613,587       8,791,714       9,461,753         9,121,744       9,680,730       9,741,558       10,091,851     
Community Service 8,829,080         9,440,530       10,621,276     11,109,721     11,217,250     12,920,891       12,929,848     13,432,902     13,816,380     13,856,582     

Debt service funds
Debt Service Account – General
  Obligation Bonds 21,933,089       19,613,449     19,753,779     20,019,858     20,477,497     18,794,993       19,010,556     19,479,210     19,805,100     19,958,431     
Debt Service Account – Other 
  Post-Employment Benefits Bonds –                       –                     –                     –                     –                     –                      –                     –                     1,024,450       960,450          

Total expenditures 217,833,677$   209,340,224$  217,657,186$  236,617,326$  257,718,990$  273,533,238$   278,785,476$  285,520,562$  273,353,101$  280,790,998$  

Revenue and Expenditures –
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, General Obligation Bonds, and 

Other Post-Employment Benefits Bonds – Debt Service Accounts
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279
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Total Taxable Estimated Actual
Real Estate Personal Property Assessed Value Taxable Value

7,513,418,100$     70,912,900$         7,584,331,000$    7,953,315,800$    95.4 %

8,496,061,800       75,755,700          8,571,817,500     9,259,765,200     92.6

9,675,606,200       80,527,400          9,756,133,600     10,304,590,400   94.7

11,148,047,300     85,704,800          11,233,752,100   11,571,167,500   97.1

12,437,223,500     87,635,200          12,524,858,700   12,765,496,800   98.1

13,792,479,900     93,196,000          13,885,675,900   14,068,304,000   98.7

14,938,565,700     92,621,600          15,031,187,300   15,142,401,100   99.3

14,948,296,100     94,114,500          15,042,410,600   15,106,544,900   99.6

14,173,173,200     95,121,100          14,268,294,300   14,290,474,500   99.8

13,032,638,800     101,798,900        13,134,437,700   13,157,941,200   99.8

Source:  Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005

of Actual Value
as a Percentage

2004

2006

Fiscal Year

2003

2008

2011

Assessed Value

2010

2009

2002

2007
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Percentage Percentage
of Tax of Tax

Property Capacity Capacity
Taxpayer Classification City Tax Capacity Rank Value Market Value Tax Capacity Rank Value Market Value

Cousins Properties Commercial Maple Grove 1,634,702$ 1  1.3   % 81,772,600$   –$              –  –          % –$                  
Target Corporation Commercial Brooklyn Park 1,504,690 2  1.2   75,272,000     –               –  –          –                   
Boston Scientific Scimed, Inc. Industrial Maple Grove 1,081,860 3  0.8   54,130,500     966,868    3  1.3       28,437,300   
KIR Maple Grove, LP Commercial Maple Grove 999,188    4  0.8   49,996,900     –               –  –          –                   
Fairview Hospital Commercial Maple Grove 641,504    5  0.5   32,112,700     –               –  –          –                   
KIMCO Realty Corporation Commercial Maple Grove 621,946    6  0.5   31,134,800     –               –  –          –                   
DDRA Maple Grove XNG, LLC Commercial Maple Grove 544,250    7  0.4   27,250,000     814,500    5  1.1       24,000,000   
BPP LLC Industrial Brooklyn Park 461,480    8  0.4   23,111,500     505,692    8  0.7       14,917,400   
Thomson Reuters Prop Tx Services Apartment Plymouth 452,250    9  0.3   36,180,000     –               –  –          –                   
Great River Energy Commercial Maple Grove 421,264    10 0.3   21,100,700     –               –  –          –                   
Excel Energy Utility Maple Grove –               –  –      –                    1,635,931 1  2.2       48,115,600   
Opus Northwest LLC Commercial Plymouth –               –  –      –                    1,137,676 2  1.5       33,549,300   
Prudential Insurance Co. of America Commercial Plymouth –               –  –      –                    934,690    4  1.3       27,535,000   
Computer Network Tec Commercial Plymouth –               –  –      –                    695,500    6  0.9       20,500,000   
Fingerhut Corporation Commercial Plymouth –               –  –      –                    605,196    7  0.8       17,844,000   
Mallard Ridge/Bigos, LLP Apartment Maple Grove –               –  –      –                    417,761    9  0.6       17,406,700   
Parkland Hotel Investment 
  Limited Partnership Apartment Maple Grove –               –  –      –                    406,500    10 0.5       12,000,000   

Total for 10 largest principal taxpayers 8,363,134$ 6.5   % 432,061,700$ 8,120,314$ 10.9     % 244,305,300$

Note:

Source: Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

2011 2002

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Property ValuationProperty Valuation

Minnesota’s tax capacity system includes class rates whereby commercial, industrial, and utility properties pay taxes based on a higher percentage of market value than
homeowners.
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Percent
Year Increase

Collectible Amount (Decrease) Amount Amount

Levy spread on tax capacity value

Tax capacity rate 2002 25,543,635$     (46.3)     % 74,503,764$     (15.8)    % 30.092             (47.1)    %
Tax capacity rate 2003 29,176,814      14.2      83,262,410      11.8     35.042             16.4     
Tax capacity rate 2004 38,883,200      33.3      94,480,859      13.5     23.709             (32.3)    
Tax capacity rate 2005 44,694,819      14.9      110,186,257    16.6     24.336             2.6       
Tax capacity rate 2006 47,857,461      7.1        122,084,778    10.8     21.815             (11.6)    
Tax capacity rate 2007 55,948,012      16.9      135,926,824    11.3     23.758             8.9       
Tax capacity rate 2008 60,201,397      7.6        150,358,956    10.6     19.710             (17.0)    
Tax capacity rate 2009 61,848,835      2.7        148,810,762    (1.0)      21.033             6.7       
Tax capacity rate 2010 60,958,678      (1.4)       138,874,529    (6.7)      22.381             6.4       
Tax capacity rate 2011 61,155,458      0.3        128,632,017    (7.3)      24.217             8.2       

Levy spread on market value

Market value rate 2002 4,716,434        (53.9)     7,529,427,875 13.1     0.06264           (59.3)    
Market value rate 2003 19,651,321      316.7    8,531,070,695 13.3     0.23035           267.7   
Market value rate 2004 16,482,734      (16.1)     9,719,739,200 13.9     0.16958           (26.4)    
Market value rate 2005 17,879,892      8.5        11,187,518,200 15.1     0.15982           (5.8)      
Market value rate 2006 21,224,667      18.7      12,452,136,725 11.3     0.17045           6.7       
Market value rate 2007 23,654,517      11.4      13,788,701,200 10.7     0.17155           0.6       
Market value rate 2008 30,565,648      29.2      14,928,276,950 8.3       0.20475           19.4     
Market value rate 2009 30,549,468      (0.1)       14,911,635,450 (0.1)      0.20487           0.1       
Market value rate 2010 29,877,170      (2.2)       14,144,378,125 (5.1)      0.21123           3.1       
Market value rate 2011 30,004,643      0.4        13,027,371,800 (7.9)      0.23032           9.0       

Source:  

Tax RateNet Levy Property Valuation

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Property Tax Rate Computation
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

Percent
Increase

(Decrease)

Percent
Increase

(Decrease)Rate
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Less Homestead
and Agricultural Remaining

Credit Aid (HACA) Less Referendum Amount Spread
and Fiscal Spread on on Tax Property Tax
Disparities Net Levy Market Value Capacity Value Credits (1)

Levies
2002 (5,039,921)$        27,136,106$       (4,716,434)$        22,419,672$       (1,915,958)$        
2003 (3,747,876)         48,828,135         (19,651,321)       29,176,814        (2,108,974)         
2004 (6,724,243)         38,883,200         (16,482,734)       22,400,466        (1,533,203)         
2005 (4,978,838)         44,694,819         (17,879,892)       26,814,927        (1,517,549)         
2006 (5,130,129)         47,857,462         (21,224,667)       26,632,795        (1,327,290)         
2007 (5,521,124)         55,948,011         (23,654,517)       32,293,494        (1,345,808)         
2008 (6,509,728)         60,201,397         (30,565,648)       29,635,749        (1,102,357)         
2009 (7,119,449)         61,848,835         (30,549,468)       31,299,367        (1,109,074)         
2010 (8,295,564)         60,958,678         (29,877,170)       31,081,508        (1,261,264)         
2011 (8,986,473)         61,155,458         (30,004,643)       31,150,815        (1,365,729)         

Net tax rates

2002 6.514                % 1.592               % 21.986            % 30.092            %
2003 10.300              1.682               23.060            35.042            
2004 5.434                1.369               16.906            23.709            
2005 6.507                1.238               16.591            24.336            
2006 6.893                1.167               13.755            21.815            
2007 10.312              1.088               12.358            23.758            
2008 7.275                0.789               11.646            19.710            
2009 7.926                1.003               12.104            21.033            
2010 8.188                1.072               13.121            22.381            
2011 9.087                1.271               13.859            24.217            

2002 0.062                –                      –                     0.062              
2003 0.230                –                      –                     0.230              
2004 0.169                –                      –                     0.169              
2005 0.159                –                      –                     0.159              
2006 0.170                –                      –                     0.170              
2007 0.172                –                      –                     0.172              
2008 0.205                –                      –                     0.205              
2009 0.205                –                      –                     0.205              
2010 0.211                –                      –                     0.211              
2011 0.230                –                      –                     0.230              

(1)

Source:

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

School Tax Levies and Tax Rates by Fund
Last Ten Fiscal Years

A portion of the total spread levy is paid through various property tax credits for residential homestead properties which are paid through state aids.

Tax capacity rate

1,691,197               20,701,420             69,254,242             

18,455,532             

47,218,603             1,664,357               20,085,324             68,968,284             

47,820,241             1,875,058               20,446,632             70,141,931             

1,517,111               25,354,985             18,735,347             
1,515,971               49,673,657             

45,607,443             

32,176,027$           
20,674,078             

27,840,135             20,317,551             

52,576,011             1,507,926               30,394,007             

All FundsRevenue Fund Debt Service Fund

1,507,672$             20,822,670$           

Year Collectible

Community

General Fund

9,845,685$             

Total LevyService Special

1,337,173               19,738,957             

32,817,224             
61,469,135             

Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records 

1,577,345               18,593,022             

66,711,125             
41,388,874             1,624,729               

52,987,591             

45,634,995             

Market value rate

46,861,625             
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Total
Tax Collection Hassan Brooklyn Hennepin Miscellaneous Maple Grove
Calendar Year Township Center Brooklyn Park Corcoran Dayton Maple Grove Osseo Plymouth Rogers ISD No. 279 County Other (1) Resident

Tax capacity rate 2002 12.733%      57.705%      47.882%    34.478%    56.115%    37.058%  39.061%  23.889%    –              30.092%  50.409%  7.443%     125.002%
Market value rate 2002 –                  0.05700%    0.02200%  –                –                0.01300% –              0.01100%  –              0.06300% –              –               0.07600%

Tax capacity rate 2003 13.241%      52.792%      43.839%    30.922%    53.845%    35.202%  38.113%  23.455%    –              35.042%  50.607%  7.764%     128.615%
Market value rate 2003 –                  0.05290%    0.03984%  –                –                0.01121% –              0.01029%  –              0.23035% –              –               0.24156%

Tax capacity rate 2004 17.500%      52.437%      42.440%    28.870%    43.595%    32.979%  36.211%  23.179%    –              23.709%  47.324%  7.522%     111.534%
Market value rate 2004 –                  0.04844%    0.01983%  –                –                0.09860% –              0.00950%  –              0.16958% –              –               0.26818%

Tax capacity rate 2005 22.291%      50.487%      36.860%    27.966%    40.771%    30.677%  33.056%  23.132%    –              24.336%  44.172%  7.522%     106.707%
Market value rate 2005 –                  0.04220%    0.03117%  –                –                0.00855% –              0.00854%  –              0.15982% –              –               0.16837%

Tax capacity rate 2006 24.878%      46.934%      37.741%    29.275%    42.524%    30.272%  30.102%  23.197%    –              21.815%  41.016%  7.021%     100.124%
Market value rate 2006 –                  0.03872%    0.02107%  –                –                0.00763% –              0.00792%  –              0.17045% –              –               0.17808%

Tax capacity rate 2007 24.264%      44.292%      35.254%    30.703%    44.446%    30.169%  36.055%  23.280%    –              23.758%  39.110%  7.210%     100.247%
Market value rate 2007 –                  0.03579%    0.02402%  –                –                0.00749% –              0.00731%  –              0.17155% –              –               0.17904%

Tax capacity rate 2008 21.972%      43.896%      37.744%    30.213%    43.004%    29.318%  42.416%  22.887%    –              19.710%  38.571%  7.312%     94.911%  
Market value rate 2008 –                  0.03346%    0.02163%  –                –                –              –              0.00693%  –              0.20475% –              –               0.20475%

Tax capacity rate 2009 21.306%      47.521%      39.652%    30.677%    43.804%    31.259%  46.580%  24.368%    –              21.033%  40.413%  7.111%     99.816%  
Market value rate 2009 –                  0.03387%    0.02310%  –                –                –              –              0.00701%  –              0.20487% –              –               0.20487%

Tax capacity rate 2010 22.883%      51.095%      44.157%    32.995%    50.867%    33.845%  45.978%  25.495%    –              22.381%  42.640%  8.133%     106.999%
Market value rate 2010 –                  0.03799%    0.02464%  –                –                –              –              0.00726%  –              0.21123% –              –               0.211%    

Tax capacity rate 2011 27.886%      57.217%      50.309%    37.041%    48.567%    36.714%  55.419%  26.944%    N/A 24.217%  45.840%  9.095%     115.866%
Market value rate 2011 –                  0.04126%    0.02768%  –                –                –              –              0.01032%  N/A 0.23032% –              –               0.230%    

Note: Information for the City of Rogers was not available for fiscal 2011

(1)

Source:  

Last Ten Fiscal Years

The miscellaneous other levy includes AVTI, mosquito control, park/museum, metro transit and other metro services, and county parks bond and interest.  These miscellaneous levies vary slightly between municipalitie

Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

Rate

Municipalities

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
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June 30, 2011
Current Delinquent Total Outstanding

Total Tax Levy Tax Collections Tax Collections Tax Collections Delinquent Taxes

32,176,027$              31,913,944$        99.2               % 248,772$            32,162,716$        100.0             % –$                      –                   %
52,576,011                52,141,930          99.2               434,081             52,576,011         100.0             –                       –                   
45,607,443                45,150,142          99.0               457,301             45,607,443         100.0             –                       –                   
49,673,657                48,938,217          98.5               735,440             49,673,657         100.0             –                       –                   
52,987,591                51,989,768          98.1               937,156             52,926,924         99.9               60,667               0.1                
61,465,876                59,939,916          97.5               1,409,282          61,349,198         99.8               116,678             0.2                
66,711,125                65,207,245          97.7               1,120,747          66,327,992         99.4               383,133             0.6                
68,968,284                67,710,766          98.2               792,110             68,502,876         99.3               465,408             0.7                
69,254,242                68,376,906          98.7               N/A 68,376,906         98.2               877,336             1.3                

(1) 70,141,931                N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A –                       N/A

Reconciliation of current tax collections with property tax revenue 1,903,222$         

Collections on property tax levy collectible
  in 2010 68,376,906$        
Portion of taxes collected from state of  
  Minnesota as HACA aid and education  
  homestead credit aid – included in
  revenue from state sources (1,261,264)          
Less tax shift allocation of the levy 
  collectible in 2010 to fiscal year 2010 (2) (4,154,530)          
Add tax shift allocation of the referendum
  levy collectible in 2011 to fiscal year 2011 (2) 24,668,213          
Property tax delinquencies, abatements, 
  and county apportionment 1,224,921            

Total local property tax revenue – 
  fiscal 2010–2011 88,854,246$        

(1)

(2)

Source: 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Only a portion of calendar year 2011 taxes are collectible by June 30, 2011.  A total of $34,317,706 of 2011 taxes were collected by June 30, 2011.

to Total Tax Levy
Tax Collections

2007

2005
2006

2010

2003

Tax Collected

Ratio of Total

to Total Tax Levy
Delinquent Taxes

Ratio of

2002

Percent of Current 

Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

Tax Collection
Calendar Year

The state of Minnesota calculates the tax shift allocation based on various portions of the total tax levy.

N/A – Not Applicable

2004

2009

2011

2008
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General Certificates of Total 
Obligation Bonds State Loan Participation Capital Leases Government Per Capita (1)

274,880,000$        320,000$               5,295,000$            2,137,373$            282,632,373$        5.3                     % 2,312$                   

228,140,000          300,000                 4,740,000             1,098,087             234,278,087          4.0                     1,819                    

201,125,000          –                            –                           3,841,596             204,966,596          3.3                     1,592                    

191,215,000          –                            –                           5,345,752             196,560,752          3.0                     1,502                    

247,445,000          –                            –                           3,579,084             251,024,084          3.6                     1,901                    

243,050,000          –                            –                           4,674,153             247,724,153          3.2                     1,858                    

233,000,000          –                            –                           3,173,629             236,173,629          2.8                     1,771                    

246,945,000          –                            –                           1,616,297             248,561,297          3.0                     1,831                    

270,610,000          –                            –                           –                           270,610,000          N/A 1,980                    

196,925,000          –                            –                           2,597,000             199,522,000          N/A 1,476                    

N/A – Not Available

(1) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

Note: Details regarding the District’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to basic financial statements.

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2011

Personal Income (1)
Percentage of 

Fiscal Year

Governmental Activities

2010

2002

2003

2009

2008

2004

2007

2005

2006
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Balance on
Outstanding Hand – Debt Taxable Tax Estimated Net Debt
Bonded Debt Service Fund Net Bonded Debt Capacity (1) Population (1) per Capita

275,200,000$    63,270,524$      166,495,301$   74,503,764$     284.5                % 122,228           1,734$              

228,440,000      23,783,457        204,656,543    83,262,410      245.8                128,766           1,589               

201,125,000      5,878,903          195,246,097    94,480,859      206.7                128,766           1,516               

191,215,000      4,779,774          186,435,226    110,186,257    169.2                130,872           1,425               

247,445,000      78,681,383        168,763,617    122,084,778    138.2                132,047           1,278               

243,050,000      77,437,018        165,612,982    135,926,824    121.8                133,327           1,242               

233,000,000      76,650,169        156,349,831    150,358,956    104.0                133,327           1,173               

246,945,000      76,455,727        170,489,273    148,810,762    114.6                135,770           1,256               

270,610,000      115,524,154      155,085,846    138,874,529    111.7                136,700           1,134               
.

196,925,000      43,716,229        153,208,771    128,632,017    119.1                135,140           1,134               

(1)

Note:

Source:

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Ratio of Net Bonded Debt to
Tax Capacity and Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Fiscal Years

District population is based upon an annual school district census and U.S. census. This information is certified to the state and is subsequently used in
determining community education revenue.

The legal debt limit for a school district in Minnesota is 15 percent of the actual value of all taxable property within the District. As of June 30, 2011, the
legal limit was $1,954,105,770.  Outstanding bonded debt as of  June 30, 2011 was $196,925,000, leaving a margin of $1,757,180,770.

Capacity ValueJune 30,
Net Debt to Tax

Ratio of

Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

2007

2008

2011

2009

2010

2005

2006

2004

2002

2003
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Real and Fiscal Disparities Fiscal Disparities Total
Personal Property Contribution Tax Increment Amount Distribution Tax Capacity Amount

93,856,961$      (11,058,529)$     (8,294,668)$      74,503,764$     (15.8)            % 9,370,566$          83,874,330$     7,529,427,875$ 13.1             %

104,500,108      (12,505,305)       (8,732,393)       83,262,410      11.8             10,290,144           93,552,554      8,531,070,695 13.3             

117,261,488      (13,590,879)       (9,189,750)       94,480,859      13.5             11,520,099           106,000,958    9,719,739,200 13.9             

134,185,814      (14,334,131)       (9,665,426)       110,186,257    16.6             12,097,773           122,284,030    11,187,518,200 15.1             

148,528,816      (16,129,687)       (10,314,351)     122,084,778    10.8             12,609,839           134,694,617    12,452,136,725 11.3             

165,619,996      (17,218,483)       (12,474,689)     135,926,824    11.3             14,084,500           150,011,324    13,788,701,200 10.7             

181,992,550      (19,764,938)       (11,868,656)     150,358,956    10.6             15,815,665           166,174,621    14,928,276,950 8.3               

184,566,629      (23,538,883)       (12,216,984)     148,810,762    (1.0)              17,781,730           166,592,492    14,911,635,450 (0.1)              

175,576,699      (25,267,147)       (11,435,023)     138,874,529    (6.7)              19,959,491           158,834,020    14,144,378,125 (5.1)              

162,160,778      (24,038,658)       (9,490,103)       128,632,017    (7.4)              20,467,528           149,099,545    13,027,371,800 (7.9)              

(1)

Source:

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Tax Capacity and Estimated Market Value of Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tax capacity is calculated by applying class rates (for specific property classifications such as residential, commercial, etc.) to the assessed market value. Class rates are periodically changed by the
state.

Market ValueTax Collection
Tax Rate Determining Value Subtotal

Percent Increase

Tax Capacity (1)

Percent Increase

2007

2002

2003

Calendar Year

2005

2006

Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

(Decrease)

2004

2010

2008

2009

2011
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

1,129,414,181$   1,279,660,604$   1,457,960,880$  1,678,127,730$  1,867,820,509$  2,068,305,180$  2,239,241,543$  2,236,745,318$  2,121,656,719$  1,954,105,770$  

275,200,000        228,440,000        201,125,000      191,215,000      247,445,000      243,050,000       233,000,000      246,945,000      270,610,000      196,925,000      

854,214,181$      1,051,220,604$   1,256,835,880$  1,486,912,730$  1,620,375,509$  1,825,255,180$  2,006,241,543$  1,989,800,318$  1,851,046,719$  1,757,180,770$  

Total net debt applicable to the limit
24.37% 17.85% 13.79% 11.39% 13.25% 11.75% 10.41% 11.04% 12.75% 10.08%

Market value 13,027,371,800$

Debt limit (15% of market value) 1,954,105,770   

Debt applicable to limit
General obligation bonds 196,925,000      

Total net debt applicable to limit 196,925,000      

Legal debt margin 1,757,180,770$  

Note:

Source: Hennepin County Department of Property Tax and Public Records

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Under state finance law, the District’s outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 15 percent of total market property value. By law, the general obligation debt subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for
repaying general obligation bonds.

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2011

Total net debt applicable to limit

Debt limit

  as a percentage of debt limit

Legal debt margin

Fiscal Year
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112   1,600   134  627 165  164    216    3,018 22,291

106   1,501   129  569 166  139    222    2,832 22,035

113   1,503   126  627 167  139    238    2,913 21,748

123   1,573   129  676 169  152    220    3,042 21,771

126   1,570   129  665 170  153    207    3,020 21,943

121   1,594   121  702 178  158    230    3,104 22,083

127   1,662   122  687 177  159    227    3,161 21,770

122   1,470   113  732 152  150    150    2,889 21,010

129   1,467   111  742 146  145    144    2,884 20,964

131   1,468   110  760 153  145    138    2,905 20,764

Percent increase
  (decrease) over
  10 years 17%  (8%)     (18%) 21% (7%)  (12%) (36%) (4%)   (7%)   

(1)

Source: The District’s Human Resources Department

Employees by Classification
Last Ten Fiscal Years

School executives, principals, secondary school building assistant principals, principals on special assignment, directors, coordinators, managers, supervisors, and secondary school building business managers and administrative
assistants.

Employees

2011

Students (ADM)
Total

CustodiansFood Service Total EmployeesOther Employees
Early Childhood/

Professionals/ Health Services/
Educational Support 

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Safety InstructionTeachers Clerical
Year Ended

June 30, Management (1)
Administrators/ Laundry/Water

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Total population 122,228         128,766        128,766       130,872       132,047       133,327         133,327       135,770       136,700       135,140       

Percent of staff with degrees
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

64% 64% 64% 64% 64% 71% 72% 72% 75% 74%

ACT information
Average ACT score 21.5               21.5              22.3             22.4             22.4             22.4               22.2             22.5             22.4             22.6             
Percent students taking ACT 57% 57% 56% 61% 61% 53% 57% 57% 60% 60%

National merit
Commended 16                  10                 8                  8                  8                  6                   8                  11                16                14                
Finalists and semifinalists 6                    6                   5                  7                  7                  8                   2                  4                  1                  2                  

Source: Schoolhouse Magazine

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Bachelor
Masters
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Capital assets
Land 6,809,718$      7,063,406$     7,068,462$     7,219,924$     6,960,390$     6,960,390$      6,966,686$     10,702,198$   10,691,698$   10,691,698$   
Land improvements 16,703,185      18,080,695    18,965,203    19,352,305    19,747,238    20,269,853      20,663,242    21,658,286    25,070,461    26,321,967    
Buildings 212,483,960    232,516,059  263,960,748  276,745,721  309,369,056  358,419,880    364,898,006  367,767,521  369,466,103  377,938,760  
Equipment 16,868,516      17,992,045    8,719,945      12,350,320    13,190,905    12,762,515      12,616,184    10,230,574    10,460,750    10,739,471    
Construction in progress 30,566,512      54,302,134    57,657,355    68,523,260    47,872,593    2,182,553        780,430         1,560,542      2,037,404      2,726,381      

Total capital assets 283,431,891$  329,954,339$ 356,371,713$ 384,191,530$ 397,140,182$ 400,595,191$  405,924,548$ 411,919,121$ 417,726,416$ 428,418,277$ 

Capital assets by function and activity
Administration 104,253$         107,189$        19,095$          19,095$          19,095$          19,095$           19,095$          19,095$          19,095$          19,095$          
District support services 116,426,530    116,429,243  114,530,133  114,585,445  114,619,590  114,629,654    114,660,822  114,660,821  113,078,539  113,232,033  
Elementary and secondary regular 
  instruction 5,470,132        5,632,630      653,244         692,942         787,427         824,284           894,873         1,021,287      1,094,002      1,099,553      
Vocational education instruction 237,096           237,096         27,185           27,185           27,185           27,185             27,185           27,185           27,185           31,811           
Special education instruction 143,269           148,707         187,305         257,782         289,187         289,187           289,187         289,187         289,187         296,042         
Instructional support services 4,524,720        4,770,622      4,316,532      4,481,626      4,735,553      4,296,548        3,865,508      902,640         910,440         1,173,720      
Pupil support services –                      –                    –                    –                    –                    –                     59,647           59,647           59,647           59,647           
Food service 2,551,539        2,597,399      2,601,629      2,892,880      3,230,896      4,088,825        4,185,739      4,888,338      4,479,013      5,057,239      
Sites and buildings 152,916,670    198,930,976  233,092,362  260,261,695  272,448,483  275,431,447    280,916,020  289,029,995  296,726,190  306,404,239  
Community service 1,057,682        1,100,477      944,228         972,880         982,766         988,966           1,006,472      1,020,926      1,043,118      1,044,898      

Total capital assets by function 
  and activity 283,431,891$  329,954,339$ 356,371,713$ 384,191,530$ 397,140,182$ 400,595,191$  405,924,548$ 411,919,121$ 417,726,416$ 428,418,277$ 

Source: The District’s Business Services Department

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
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Use Constructed

Arbor View Early Childhood Center School 1983/2001 5.00   26      27,000    247    53      
School 1995/2002 36.00 47      102,648  875    1,021 
School 1966/1991/2004 15.00 34      74,314    525    549    
School 1970 23.16 34      66,871    525    484    
School 1960/1990/1999/2003 16.00 29      59,208    350    320    

School 1988/2002 20.00 44      106,406  960    921    
School 1980 15.00 33      84,300    525    641    
School 1962/1991/2004 13.16 34      75,129    525    366    
School 1988/2003 43.00 44      105,440  960    898    
School 1959/1994/2004 10.00 21      55,153    350    340    

School 1991 22.00 36      98,600    700    531    
School 1965/1994 13.38 20      47,866    368    –        
School 1954/1957/1987/2005 11.00 19      46,144    300    –        
School 1964/1991/2005 15.00 34      74,463    525    689    
School 1959/1994/2004 10.00 21      55,011    350    335    

School 1980 15.42 33      84,300    525    720    
School 1995/2002 29.00 47      102,648  875    987    
School 1991 29.08 44      98,600    875    751    
School 1956/1957/1987 11.10 19      42,796    338    155    

Woodland Elementary School 2002 19.00 46      101,555  875    999    
School 1967/2002 9.21   33      81,843    525    487    

School 1963/1969/1980/2003 28.57 59      176,104  1,237 888    
School 1990/2003 46.62 93      275,680  1,707 1,634 
School 1970/1986/2002/2007 26.04 63      186,448  1,105 643    
School 1966/1969/2002/2004 19.89 63      194,507  1,285 1,243 
School 1996/2002/2004 110.00 115    335,872  1,940 1,630 
School 1952/1957/1960/1962/1964/1966/1975/1988/2002 43.63 122    373,000  1,735 1,500 
School 1964/1966/1971/1975/1987/1988/2002/2003 31.00 103    398,774  1,597 1,382 

Osseo Area Learning Center School 2000 5.00   20      47,108    280    –        

Office/maintenance/
  warehouse 1969/1975/1980/2005 17.76 –        121,100  N/A –        
Sports 1990/2005 3.62   –        32,640    N/A –        
Sports 1974 –        –        34,840    N/A –        

Adult Education Center Adult education 2005 –        –        25,538    N/A –        
Timberland Properties Special education/CBVAT/

  Enrollment Center Leased –        9        12,249    66      53      
Special education Leased –        15      29,655    100    65      

Total 3,833,810 23,150 20,285

N/A – Not Applicable

(1)

(2)

Source: The District’s Operations Department

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

School Facilities
as of June 30, 2011

Situated on the District’s property and covered under a joint powers agreement.  The arena will become the District’s property upon satisfaction of the outstanding debt.

Garden City Elementary

Palmer Lake Elementary

Brooklyn Junior High

Park Center Senior High

Cedar Island Elementary
Crest View Elementary

Maple Grove Senior High
Osseo Senior High

Zanewood Community School

Zachary Square Center

Edinbrook Elementary
Elm Creek Elementary
Fair Oaks Elementary
Fernbrook Elementary

Educational Service Center/
  warehouse/maintenance
New ice arena (1)

Enrollment is defined as the adjusted ADMs served excluding resident students tuitioned out to other Minnesota school 

Facility

Basswood Elementary
Birch Grove for the Arts

Old ice arena

Willow Lane ECSE

Oak View Elementary
Orchard Lane Elementary
Osseo Elementary

Weaver Lake Science, Math & Technology

Acres

Osseo Junior High

Maple Grove Junior High

Enrollment (2)Classrooms Square Footage

North View Junior High

Park Brook Elementary

Rice Lake Elementary
Rush Creek Elementary

Capacity
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21,622 2,456,241  172 14,280 66.0         % 433,694 17.7       % 167,761 6.8         %

21,374 2,507,074  172 14,576 68.2         508,574 20.3       170,631 6.8         

21,095 2,478,685  172 14,411 68.3         556,050 22.4       178,970 7.2         

21,118 2,629,008  172 15,285 72.4         658,151 25.0       191,721 7.3         

21,285 2,662,435  172 15,479 72.7         719,035 27.0       198,177 7.4         

21,420 2,701,115  171 15,796 73.7         752,637 27.9       221,013 8.2         

21,116 2,661,288  172 15,473 73.3         778,238 29.2       218,726 8.2         

20,379 2,537,579  187 13,570 66.6         763,322 30.1       225,006 8.9         

20,339 2,583,066  205 12,600 61.9         856,214 33.1       223,857 8.7         

20,141 2,591,135  195 13,288 66.0         904,757 34.9       256,310 9.9         

(1)

Source:

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Food Service
School Lunch Program Data

Last Ten Fiscal Years

as a Percentage of

AttendanceParticipationLunches Served

Participation

The District’s Food Service Department

2004

2005

2006

2007

2010

Based on State Food and Nutrition Department guidelines; attendance is deemed to be 97 percent of enrollment.

2009

2008

2011

Percent of TotalNumber Served
Total

Days Number Served
Reduced Lunch

Percent of Total
Free LunchAverage DailyAverage Daily

2003

2002

Attendance (1)June 30,
Average DailyYear Ended
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Early 
Childhood and 

Year Ended Kindergarten –
June 30, Handicapped Kindergarten Elementary Secondary Number Number

2002 214               1,462                   10,174       10,441       22,291        0.3          % 25,690        0.4          %

2003 218               1,410                   9,910         10,497       22,035        (1.2)         25,457        (0.9)         

2004 240               1,368                   9,769         10,371       21,748        (1.3)         25,139        (1.3)         

2005 246               1,454                   9,608         10,463       21,771        0.1          25,140        –             

2006 261               1,415                   9,702         10,565       21,943        0.8          25,375        0.9          

2007 276               1,508                   9,755         10,544       22,083        0.6          25,476        0.4          

2008 282               1,421                   9,677         10,390       21,770        (1.4)         25,231        (1.0)         

2009 283               1,332                   9,424         9,971         21,010        (3.5)         24,361        (3.4)         

2010 315               1,435                   9,449         9,765         20,964        (0.2)         24,217        (0.6)         

2011 314               1,377                   9,635         9,438         20,764        (1.0)         23,958        (1.1)         

Note 1: Student enrollment numbers are estimated for the most recent fiscal year.

Note 2: Beginning in fiscal 2004 ADM is limited to 1.0 ADM per student.

Note 3: ADM is weighted as follows in computing pupil units:

Early Childhood
and Kindergarten – Elementary Elementary

Handicapped Kindergarten 1–3 4–6 Secondary

Various 0.557 1.115 1.060 1.300
Various 0.612 1.115 1.060 1.300

Source: Minnesota Department of Education

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 279

Students
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Average Daily Membership (ADM) (For Students Served or Tuition Paid)

(Decrease)

Fiscal 2002 through 2007
Fiscal 2008 through 2011

(Decrease)

Total Pupil UnitsTotal
Percent
Increase

Percent
Increase
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